


CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company’)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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The board (the “Board’) of directors (the “Directors”) of HBRELEEFRAR ([FXAFES ([F

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited EHhe([Exg J) ﬁ‘ﬁ$ AR EWB AR (5
(the “Company”) announces the unaudited consolidated 5 [AEHE ] )@ — £ XH=vH JJ:/\1I
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively AREZE=ZZT = E/\ﬂ THIE=@AZARE
referred to as the “Group”) for the six months ended BREEEA BRI T _TFRBAZEERHETH
30 June 2021 and the three months ended 30 June T

2021, together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2020 as follows:

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSNE |NCOME

Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June
BEXA=THLE={ER HBEXA=tALRER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—FC--F e 33 —¥z-% S 323
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FEL TET THL
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
i3 (REEHZ) (REERZ) (REEH) (REER)
Revenue WA

- Goods and services -EmRkR% 4 42,388 4,573 61,324 14,215
- Rental iikn 4 1,031 1,066 2,695 2,000
Total revenue BIA 43,419 5,639 64,019 16,215
Other income H e A 4 1,201 7,238 2,646 9,841
Staff costs BImkA 7 (5,400) (11,204) (12,355) (23,512
Other operating expenses HinBERY (56,996) (20,429) (88,242) (34,016)
Operating loss LEBR (17,776) (18,756) (33,932) (31,472)

Depreciation of property, NE BERIENE
plant and equipment 7 (18,244) (24,867) (20,160) (27,514
Depreciation of right-of-use assets #REEENE 7 (3,440 (3,439) (6,879) (6,878)
Net exchange gain/(losses) Bl (BB)FE 12,646 1,397 9,101 (12,752)
Share of loss of a joint venture SMe—HA “ﬁ%ﬁé’ﬁ B (2,038) (576) (2,038) (1,229)
Impact on financial restructuring %’T%‘%E%ﬁﬁﬁ, 2 - 854,269 - 854,269
Finance costs BEMR 6 (30,292) (41,085) (61,125) (84,609)
(Loss)/profit before income tax KxFT B %Al (K1) /HE 7 (59,144) 766,943 (115,033) 689,815
Income tax expenses MERRY 8 - - - -
(Loss)/profit for the period AHIE (518) /#E (59,144) 766,943 (115,033) 689,815

BHEREXECEEARA A - —FHHRE 03



UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEZZGEBEERAMEEKER

Three months ended Six months ended

30 June 30 June
BEAA=THL=MEA HBEAA=TALRER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—g--% —Z-% —E=-§ —T-ZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FEL THET FET
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
i3 (REEH) (REER) (REEH) (REEH)
Other comprehensive Htp2@EMA/ (FX)
income/(expense)
ltem that may be reclassified RETHES BERK
subsequently to profit or loss EH
Exchange difference on translation 8 /85 £ 75 81 15 & B
of financial statements of foreign ~ E4RELZR
operations 2,772 7 352 (8,736)
Other comprehensive AYEEBEEAKA
income/(expense) (M%) NRKIE
for the period, net of tax 2,772 777 352 (8,736)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ AHH2E (HX)/
income for the period BN BE (56,372) 767,720 (114,681) 681,079
(Loss)/profit for the period A8 (58)
attributable to: HE:
Owners of the Company NGIEZ=DN (56,655) 767,125 (114,898) 690,292
Non-controlling interests FERER (69) (182) (135) (477)
(56,724) 766,943 (115,033) 689,815
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EEAHE2E (%),
income for the period 9N 1
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRAERA (56,308) (767,902) (114,546) 681,556
Non-controlling interests FERER (69) (182) (135) (477)
(56,372) (768,084) (114,681) 681,079
(Loss)/earnings per share sk (B8) /B3
Basic and diuted EARES HK(0.74) HK15.36 HK(1.45) HK13.81
9 cent#{ll centsSl cents#l centsi{ll
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BAFEAR S AR

2N

B ZmE

At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
R-TB-—% RZEZTF
~A=+H +=—A=+—9H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEE) (RE&EZ)
Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y WENREE 11 1,413,350 1,418,843
Investment in a joint venture BEDERE - 459
Investment ’E 9,029 =
Investment properties wEWME 12 90,000 -
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 2,396 2,376
Right-of-use assets AHAEEE 13 339,650 346,529

Long-term receivables and E%ﬁ}fuﬂl RIE R & E
investment deposits e 144,303 143,916
1,998,728 1,912,123

Current assets MENEE

Film products and film production BYEmRERER

in progress E o 4,442 4,524
Investment in films/dramas B, BIESTE

production 325 825
Trade receivables EUWE 5508 14 83,597 79,917
Inventories FE 2,409 2,393
Prepayment, deposits and ERRE -EE R

other receivables H b fE U 5B 107,476 89,921
Amount due from a joint venture EUE & ERTE 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances Be MIEeE 6,923 10,758

207,586 190,252
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade payables ERE 5 RIE 15 40,331 39,882
Other payables and accruals H{th & RIE K
e & R 99,776 116,670
Investment in a joint venture ERECERE 1,581 -
Lease liabilities/ fﬁ saE/

Finance lease obligation B s E R 14,451 14,439
Promissory notes AHEE 17 14,100 14,100
Provision for income tax FriSfi i 8 2,951 2,951

173,190 188,042

Net current assets MENEEFE 34,396 2,210

Total assets less current liabilities BEAERREEE 2,033,124 1,914,333
HBERE(CEEGRA A T —FHRBERSE
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REBR 2 B MR R

At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
R-TB-—% RZZTZFTF
~A=+H +—-A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 TER FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RESE) (REeEZ)
Non-current liabilities REEHE
Other payables and accruals Hi B RIAR
et &R 144,321 55,000
Borrowings BE 119,499 141,183
Loans from shareholders REREHER 16 141,122 74,248
Promissory notes A HEE 17 32,900 32,900
Convertible bonds Al AR (E 5 18 891,016 866,016
Lease liabilities/finance lease HEaE YKHEE
obligation HHE 18,010 17,124
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEEE 99,500 99,500
1,446,368 1,285,971
Net assets FEE 586,756 628,362
Capital and reserves BEREE
Share capital A% A 832,387 742,387
Reserves & (243,782) (112,311)
Equity attributable to owners of RRBIEE AEIE#ER
the Company 588,605 630,076
Non-controlling interests JEERRE = (1,849) (1,714)
Total equity s 586,756 628,362

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AREBER G ERBER

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FRARFAEE
Attributable
Properties Share  Convertible to non-
Share Share Special Ci i option bond equity A lated
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  reserves losses  Subtotal interests Total
% TRRRS 30
Rx  ROER BREE  RAER  EREE  AHER BRESE  BURE  RHER UHI 1.0 [
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tikr Tk Tk Tir Tt Tk T Titr Tk L Tikr Fin
Asat 1 January 2020 (Audited) 494 817 866,992 6,302 78,791 158,104 (146,299) 49,317 - (1,938824)  (430,740) (543 (431,283)
Lapse of share options BRELK - - - - - - (3,016) - 3,016 9 - -
Issue of convertible bonds arising from HBEATRESTTARES
the completion of financial restructuring - - - - - - - 3,938 - 3,933 = 3,933
Share issued upon completion of BRERTREFETHRE
financial restructuring 215512 183,185 - - - - - - - 398,697 - 398,697
Transactions with owners BERANETNRS 215512 183,185 - - - - (3,016) 3933 3,016 402,630 - 402,630
Profit/loss) for the period REHAE/ ( - - - - - - - - 690292 690,292 (477) 689,815
Exchange difference on translation of BERNE
financial statement of foreign operations EizE - - - - - 8,736) - - - (8,736) - 8,736)
Total comprehensive income/[expense) TEH2ENN/ (X 88
for the period - - - - - (8,736) - - 690,292 681,556 (477) 681,079
As at 30 June 2020 (Unaudited)
710,329 1,080,177 6,302 78,791 158,104 (155,035) 46,361 3933 (1,245,516) 663,446 (1,020) 662,426
At 1 January 2021 (Unaudited) R=Z=-%-F-A(£0%%) 742,387 1,080,119 6,302 78,791 158,104 (124,079) 24,666 3,933 (1,340,147) 630,076 (1,714) 628,362
Issue of ordinary shares for settlement of ¥TERR
the acquisition for the Target Company RERT 90,000 - - - - - - - - 90,000 - 90,000
Transactions with owners HERNETNRS 90,000 - - - - - - - - 90,000 - 90,000
Loss for the period rEEER - - - - - - - - (114898 (114,898) (135)  (115,089)
Exchange difference on translation of BERNE R
financial statement of foreign operations EEMERZS - - - - - 352 - - - 352 - 352
Total comprehensive income/[expense) FEH2ERN/ (Rx) 88
for the period - - - - - 352 - - (114898)  (114,546) (135)  (114,681)
Lapse of share option BRERNR - - - - - - - - (16925  (16,925) - (16925
As at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) RZZ=-%7A=1R
(REEH) 832,387 1,080,119 6,302 78,791 158,104 (123,721) 24,666 3,933 (1,471,970) 588,605 (1,849) 586,756

BHEREXECEEARA A

—E-—FREARE
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UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEEZEHGEREERER

Six months ended 30 June

BESA=+HLEREAR

2021 2020
—g-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEE) (RgeEZ)
Net cash used in operating activities #& & ¥ 75 FTRIE & F 48 (74,953) (53,965)
Net cash used in investing activities R & & EH T RIS H5 305 (5,045)
Net cash generated by financing BEEEFSREFE
activities 70,929 62,747
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and B & REELZEIER
cash equivalents (W) /1 hnF 58 (3,719) 3,737
Cash and cash equivalents Mz Re ke EEEE
at the beginning of the period 10,758 (2,111)
Effects of exchange rate changes of [ & & &f & Fr i oM 8
the balance of cash held in fﬁ% R e
foreign currencies (116) (116)
Cash and cash equivalents HRzBReMASEEER
at the end of the period 6,923 1,510

08 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited  Interim Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financiol Statements

GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 16 November 2001 as an exempted company
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
On 14 October 2010, the Company deregistered
in the Cayman lIslands and duly continued in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the
laws of Bermuda effective on 14 October 2010.
The registered office of the Company is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong is Room 1514-1515, 15/F., Seapower Tower,
Concordia Plaza, No.1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Company
is principally engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group include
film production and distribution, the provision
of management services to artistes, event
coordination, provision of travel related products
and operations of film studio and hotels.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM
Listing Rules”), including compliance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 Interim
Financial Reporting and Interpretation issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements set out
in Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2021
should be read in conjunction with the unaudited
annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of the unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial statements are same as those applied
in the preparation of the Group’s annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,
except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretations issued by HKICPA that are
first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. The followings are the significant
changes to the accounting policy applied in these
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the period presented as a result of
adoption of these amendments.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component that can be converted into ordinary
shares at the option of the purchaser, where
the number of shares to be issued is fixed, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments,
i.e. they contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value based
on the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the prevailing market rate of interest
for similar non-convertible instruments. The equity
component is the difference between the initial
fair value of the convertible bonds as a whole
and the initial fair value of the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

3.

Interim Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible bonds
equity reserve until either the bonds are converted
or redeemed. If the bonds are converted, the
convertible bonds equity reserve, together with the
carrying amount of the liability component at the
time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the bonds are redeemed, the convertible
bonds equity reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

BHEREXECEEARA A

R MRS R R M

EFEESEBER (&)

TRRIESF ()

BEMOHERREFERATR - REABEHS
RBEERNNEFARABRMNEEGTE -
REBoRNAREESESFERER BEE
BErEEBRBORIE - WESESE. B
AR E S R SR E R B AR D
REESBRERARBRNDEE (FRE %
TR E-HMESFEED B A& E
FEDFBEEREEERE RN -

BEREE

BERENEARARACAEFHNELEER
AR R #ER 2 REBR(ME)7
R-AERAERFHZENEERAMAG
AERFHAERAEHE BERAERF
HZBWEENEEPRMEHTEZEIRE
B FE R — R e

B A R A0 A F B 00 B8 ER R AR
EAEERRFRERBEIRR-

RIFMERBETVEEEENRANBRZLE
PIEsRFMREERAE CHNERTE
WREERIEERE NG S BmR AR
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

Revenue derived from the Group’s principal
activities recognised during the period is as follows:

4. WAREAEA

HABRAREAEE I EEZBHRAMT

Three months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHL=MEA

Six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THLAER

2021 2020 2021 2020
—¥--% —E-ZF —¥--f —Z-%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT TER TER
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER) (REER)
Revenue from contracts with FEMBREERE15T
customers within the scope of BEANEESOMKE
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by BRIEELSRBEES:
major products or services lines:
Artiste management fee income EAERBRA 7 6 7
Hotel room income BERRERA - 1,107 - 3,088
Food and beverage income ZHBA - 2,684 - 6,264
Entrance fee income PIHIRA - 558 - 3,372
Sales of travel related products HERTERER - (87) - 313
Sales of goods EmiEE 50 26 101
Service income BRI A - - 38 -
Ancillary services RERS - 254 - 1,070
Training income = 1/ ON 892 - 1,239 -
Digital commerence FuBEEKERA
business income 41,484 - 60,015 -
42,388 4,573 61,324 14,215
Rental income - Filming Service HEWA - BERB 811 1,066 1,571 2,000
Rental income - Share of revenue ~ H& WA - H1ERA 220 1,066 1,124 2,000
1,031 2,132 2,695 4,000
43,419 5,639 64,019 16,215
Timing of revenue recognition: Yo TR B A -
At a point of time EE AR 41,496 3,204 60,085 10,050
Over time R—ER 892 1,369 1,239 4,165
42,388 4,573 61,324 14,215
Other income 201N
Government subsidy RIS HEE - 4,141 - 4,141
Others Hith 1,201 3,097 2,646 5,700
1,201 7,238 2,646 9,841

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

Interim Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business
lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group is currently organised into
the following operating segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

Films production and - Production and distribution
distribution, sales of films, provision of
of travel related travel related products,
products, artiste provision of
management and management services
event coordination to artistes and event

coordination
Film studio operation - Operation of film studio
Hotel operation — Operation of hotel

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

BHEREXECEEARA A

R MRS R R M

2 EE R

AEBZREBENEEEER - IRERD
ELXRBAFEENRAAEERSETHRE
BAB(MXT2KerRRE(EEEBRKE
B ETABERBEN T A&
BIRAMATEED R - NREBE I ERLL
DEBA G AR TSI AT 2D &8

EXRERET —RERBRTER
HERITHBEmR RERITAHME
BATEREDNE M2 ARH

E IR IRTS MOE B
nE

FREPLE —RREZBRW

B R R —RREBIE

BRAREEA 2R BN D EBERZFIMT

SEC-FRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by reportable segments:

DEER (&)

HEBMARFESE

AT RIZAZHRDHEA DN AEERARE
BN

Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste Digital
management commerence
and event Film studio Hotel business
coordination operation operation income Total
EFHER
BT HE
T4
ER-BA
EER HhmE
EBRE FRREE BIELE E371 0N BeHE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET TET
Six months ended BE-%--f§
30 June 2021 (Unaudited) ~A=+BLERER
(REER)
Revenue from external RENREFEH
customers WA 2,224 1,036 743 60,015 64,019
Reportable segment revenue AE2RDBRA 2,224 1,036 743 60,015 64,019
Reportable segment loss 2R PEE (8,419) (28,215) (12,327) (1,200) (50,161)
Gain on exchange difference 3N ONER 9,101
Other income Hip A 2,646
Unallocated corporate RABAAFAY
expenses (15,494)
Finance costs BERKK (61,125)
Loss before income tax BRETEH AR (115,033)

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MRS R R M

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. HEER (&)
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results PEBGA REELE ()
(Continued)
Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel  Inter-segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
BYHIER
B HE
kol
Em-EA
FER
EBRE FRREE BELE D EBREE BeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FEL T FAET THT
Six months ended HE-F-%#
30 June 2020 (Unaudited) ~A=+8LAER
(REER)
Revenue from external customers R B REFHIBA 320 6,047 9,848 = 16,215
Inter-segment revenue AEEYA = = 46 (46) -
Reportable segment revenue BES Gk 110N 320 6,047 9,894 (46) 16,215
Reportable segment loss NERHFEER (9,576) (33,388) (24,472) — (67,436)
Impact on financial restructuring ~ ¥EI K EAMNFE 854,269
Net exchange losses EREEFE (12,752)
Other income Htl A 9,841
Unallocated corporate expenses KA E A AR (9,498)
Finance costs AR (84,609)
Profit before income tax BRETE LA M)A 689,815

EREBABAEBAREINREERUA
K7 #REISHE o

Revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers and inter-
segment sales during the period.

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by DEEEESIHEENEBEE EFLES

each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including directors’ salaries,
waiver of interest of convertible bond, loss on early
redemption of convertible bond, amortisation, other
operating income and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

BHEREXECEEARA A

RARATHRA(BERESEHS HRerik
BREZFOF S - e FEE A AR S 2 B8
B HOKERARBEKRDE) U/
RERRFEDHRAMAERLLRRE
WENTET X

SEC-FRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. 7EEHF (&)

(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities HEEEREE
Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management Film Digital
and event studio Hotel commerce
coordination operation operation business Total
EFHER
BT HE
T4
ER-EA
EER
EBGE FRREE BELSE HUBEER BeHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TET TET
At 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) R-B--f
~A=+H
(REEH)
Reportable segment assets ERNHEE 6,150 1,117,859 816,479 60,015 2,000,503
Property, plant and equipment nE BERRE 979
Investment BE 116,429
Other receivables Hit 5B 66,929
Unallocated corporation assets RABRAEE 21,474
Consolidated assets GREE 2,206,314
Reportable segment liabilities NEFNHEE (15,211) (187,904) (41,090) (61,215) (305,420)
Loans from shareholders REREMER (141,122)
Borrowings fBE (119,499)
Convertible bonds RRES (891,016)
Promissory notes ELER (47,000)
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEAE (99,500)
Provision for income tax FEBAE (2,951)
Unallocated corporation liabilties &7 & A7 & & (13,050)
Consolidated liabilities GRRBE

(1,619,558)

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

Interim Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MRS R R M

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. pEER (E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) HEEERERE (£E)
Films
production and
distribution,
sales of

travel related
products,artiste

management Film Digital
and event Studio Hotel commerce

coordination operation operation business Total

BYRIER

BT HERT

BEER:

EAEER
EBRE FRREE BELE  HUEBER BeE
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET T FHT T

At 31 Dec 2020 (Unaudited) R-F-%%
+ZA=+-H
(REEH)

Reportable segment assets NERHFPEE 8,727 1,122,353 811,920 - 1,943,000
Property,plant and equipment nE BERRE 986
Unallocated corporation assets AORAREE 158,389
Consolidated assets GREE 2,102,375
Reportable segment liabilities NERHFEE (11,457) (120,162) (40,722) - (172,341)
Loans from shareholder REBRROER (74,248)
Borrowings BE (141,183)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHERE (99,500)
Convertible bonds iR ES (866,016)
Promissory notes ELER (47,000)
Provision for income tax S REE (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOEDLAAR (70,774)
Consolidated liabilities TERE (1,474,013)

BEREXCEBERRA —TZ—FHRHARSE 17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. pEBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEBEERERE (E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment RERDBERARRHEFEIEEIR:
performance and allocating resources between
segments:
- all assets are allocated to reportable = ﬁ’&ﬂé?’i\\ FrEEESNRERT]
segments other than corporate assets; and EWHE:
- all liabilities are allocated to reportable - BRRAEGEN FEEBEIRERA
segments other than corporate liabilities. EWMHE -
Other segment information R 7 5B E#}
Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management Film
and event studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
EVHER
BT HE
RTHEER
EAEER
EHRE PRmEE BEEE BeH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT FHT FTET
At 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) R=¥=-—-%5xHA=+H
(REEH)
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% - B E Rk BT E
equipment 241 12,712 7,207 20,160
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FAELERE - 5,756 1,122 6,878
Addition to non-current assets REFRBEE 258 6,634 - 6,892
At 30 June 2020 (Unaudited) “Z-ZFXA=TH
(*i‘“ﬁﬁ)
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% BE N R EFE
equipment 495 12,697 14,321 27,513
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FFEEEENE - 5,756 1,122 6,878
Addition to non-current assets REFRDEE 32 6,947 7 6,986

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited  Interim Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets
are principally attributable to the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) including Hong Kong (being
the place of domicile of the major companies
comprising the Group).

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the contracts are negotiated
and entered with the customers. The total revenue
from external customers is mainly sourced from the
PRC.

FINANCE COSTS 6.

Three month

BERAZ+HL=ZMEA

R MRS R R M

/2N

aEER (&)

1 67 & 14

AEBERBRARFERBDEESEIERE D
ZFARKMNE ([HE]) (BEEL) (AR
SEETETERAMERME) °

EPHEENDENERPEE MR AL
MUEME - KEIBEFHBEAZTER
BHE-

BB A

s ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June

BERAZTHLARER

2021 2020 2021 2020

—E--% —ZCTEF —BCZ-f —Z-TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THL FET TEL

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REEZ) (REER) (REER)

Finance lease charges BEHREER 403 415 899 829
Interest on bonds BHHE - 18,564 - 41,491
Interest on convertible bonds ARRESRF S 22,797 506 45,780 506
Interest on loan from shareholders ~ RR EZHF 2 2,395 16,959 6,330 33,919
Interest on unsecured other borrowingsE 1 2 # 1 (£ & 7| & - 1,944 870 2,530
Interest on secured other borrowings E B K EEF S 4,697 2,697 7,246 5,334
30,292 41,085 61,125 84,609

BHEREXECEEARA A

—E-—FREARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME
TAX

/.

BR i & 5L A1

Three months ended 30 June

BEAA=+HL=MEA

(&#8), FHE

Six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THLAER

2021 2020 2021 2020
—%--% i S —®¥--f —Z-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAET F#ET FAEL
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REERZ) (REER) (REER)
(Loss)/profit before income tax is BRETS LA (B8) /FE
arrived at after charging EMBRTIIEE
Auditor’s remuneration ZEMB £ 275 250 550 500
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FRELERE 3,440 3,439 6,879 6,878
Depreciation of property, nE -BERSENE
Plant and equipment 18,244 24,867 20,160 27,514
Employee benefit expenses EERHBAX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BEEZMS)
Salaries and allowances e R 4,851 10,712 11,584 22,401
Contributions to retirement benefits 14Kk 4& A 51 21 3
schemes 549 492 771 15141
5,400 11,204 12,355 23,512

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited  Interim Report 2021



10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for
the six months ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil) as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits
in Hong Kong during these periods.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not
been provided as the PRC subsidiaries incurred
losses for taxation purpose for both periods.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$114,898,000 (2020: profit of
approximately HK$690,292,000) and the weighted
average of approximately 7,916,134,000 (2020:
approximately 4,999,322,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the period.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the (loss)/profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 was
the same as basic loss per share as the impact
of the exercise of the share options, warrants and
convertible bonds is anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment
of an interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).

10.

BHEREXECEEARA A

R MRS R R M

PSR <

AR AEERBEE-_T_—FA=+AHI
NER YA R B E S ERERTOEN -
WU SR BEFEBEHEE (=
T_TFE) -

A 7 R R B A A A 29 8% 1S B 7S S
B MU BERPECERSH (HEB25%)
e B -

P E At DA #E [ B A H B IR JD IR AR B RLAHE
BHE R RGTE -

BR (BE) BF

EREAEBNREBEAQAGES AELE
£ 49114,898,0008 L (ZZE == F : F B L
690,292,000/ 7T ) K& B B 2 17 I 3@ A /9 0
W8 497,916,134,0001 (=T =T 4 :

494,999,322, 0000% ) 5 & °

RRITHEERE RREERTBREESA
EREBEFE WEBEE_TE-_—FR_ZT-
TFEANAZTHLEANEARA AXAREE AR
5 (BR)/FENESR®E (EE) &BF
HEREABIEHER-

iz 2

EETEBRNBE_ZE-_—FA=+H
EARBEANPHARE(ZE_FF &) -

SEC-FRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 1N.YE - BERRKXHE
EQUIPMENT
At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
R-F-—% RZZEZZE

~A=+H +=-A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

TER FET

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RESEE) (RieEZ)

At 1 January n—A—H 1,418,843 1,400,027
Additions: A=

Property, plant and equipment Y- Wz MEE 6,893 7,028

Disposal HE (5,158) (19,507)

Depreciation we (20,160) (56,745)

Exchange realignment bE 5 & 12,932 88,040

1,413,350 1,418,843

The carrying amount of leasehold land and
buildings shown above are situated on:

EXFREE L REFREENSTWT

At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
R-T-—% RZTZFF
~A=+H st = =i =
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEE) (REeEZ)
Land in the PRC under medium-term R ERR RS i
leases 7,692 7,838
7,692 7,838

As at 30 June 2021, hotel properties and the film
studio had not been revaluated and had been
included in the consolidated financial statements at
historical cost of approximately HK$453,713,000
and approximately HK$824,643,000 respectively as
at 30 June 2021.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited  Interim Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Hotel properties were revaluated on 31 December
2019 and 2018 by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”)
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. RHL is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the valuation of properties in the relevant
location. The revaluation deficit of approximately
HK$3,195,000 (2018: surplus of approximately
HK$32,102,000) net of applicable deferred income
taxes credit of approximately HK$799,000 (2018:
approximately HK$8,026,000) was debited to
properties revaluation reserve in the amount of
approximately HK$2,396,000 (2018: credited to
properties revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$24,076,000). If the hotel properties had
not been revalued, it would have been included
in the consolidated financial statements at
historical cost of approximately HK$453,713,000
(2018: approximately HK$453,713,000) as at
31 December 2019.

Film Studio were revaluated on 31 December
2019 and 2018 by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group. The revaluation
deficit of approximately HK$232,684,000 (2018:
deficit of approximately HK$60,739,000) net
of applicable deferred income taxes credit
of approximately HK$58,171,000 (2018:
approximately HK$15,185,000) was debited to
properties revaluation reserve in the amount of
approximately HK$174,513,000 (2018: debited
to properties revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$45,554,000). If the film studio had not
been revalued, it would have been included
in the consolidated financial statements at
historical cost of approximately HK$836,095,000
(2018: approximately HK$818,434,000) as at
31 December 2019.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

JE1 %

BHEREXECEEARA A

R MRS R R M

Mx-BERsE (&)

BENER_ZE—NER_FT—NE+_8
=+—HEXMITIEBBARRQF ([K
T REASEEBENBILISER
EEGHEM EMH - KFTABBAEZRE
EMNEE EEEEERBITHARER
BT F (G 1E o E 1A E5 AN £93,195,00078 7T

—T— \F: B 432,102,000/ 7T ) f %
FERRIELEEHRIER4799,0008 T (= F
— J\%E : 498,026,000/& 7t ) B N ¥ % = 14
BB 42,396,000 7T (ZF— \F: R
Y2 E RS T T A 424,076,000 7T ) © fif
BEMETEETEG EBER_T—NLF
+=ZA=+—BMESLKAL453,713,000
BT (ZZT— N\ F: #453,713,0005 7T ) 5t
AR B RE

FHEBER-_E—NER_ZE—N\F+_A
=+ —HHmEYRRFEZBDERAR (—
FEAEBEBENBYAEREEMGE
Bl ) B 18 - & {4 & 4t 49232,684,000/%8 7T (=
T — )\ 4F : B4t #4960,739,000/% 7T ) 0% & F
B34 3T Fr 18 1 18 4 958,171,000 7. ( = &
— \%F : 915,185,000/ 70 ) E R ¥ E 4
B 49174,513,00008 T (—Z 2 — )\ F:
A 2 & 1 1 18 R H0 K 4945,554,000/8 7T ) ©
HMEBARACEG EBER_TE—NLF+=
A=+—HME$ KA 4836,095,0007% 7T
(=T — )\ £ : #1818,434,000# 7T ) 5t A &7
B EHRE -

T EL TSGR ELE S 2 1
Rk AERARR -

SEC-FRERE
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these hotel properties and film
studio are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the key inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

As at 31 December 2020:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

1. 9% BB R&iE ()

TREHABZZAEDEREZEBNAAN
BNAEE(LERMBHERMETIESR

ABBINER UKERH

A

AAEHERR

AREFETZHAREBENAIBERREEM S
BOAREBR(E—REE=H) -

R-B_FFE+_A=+—8:

Fair value  Valuation techniques and Significant

Element hierarchy  key inputs unobservable inputs Range/Amount  Sensitivity

b ARERR HERE REERABE EXT UHEBARRE 0E8/¢8 HEE

Hotel properties Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs approach ~ Replacement costs of RMB654,000,000  The higher the costs
(based on current cost of replacement constructions hotel (2019: RMB650,000,000) of constructions, the
of the improvements, less allowance properties higher the fair values
for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation)

BENZ E=R REEENNE (ERMELERA BENERANEE ARM654,000000 RBERARE AAE
BENA BRERBRR-IAE KA (Z2-n%&: am
FRNREREBHBELIR) AR #650,000,0007T)

Film studio Level 3 Income approach-discounted cashflow Discount rate 14%  The higher the discount
approach (2019: 14%) rate, the lower the fair

value
G221 E=8R BAE-BRREREE ER% 4%  EREAR DAERE

(ZF-NF:14%)

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of film studio held under finance leases of
the Group was approximately HK$5,821,000 (2020:
approximately HK$6,553,000).

Interim Report 2021

RBEPRR AEBREFHHEEEENY
B2 BREFEL 55,821,000 L (ZZE =
T 1 496,553,000 B IT) °



12.

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of investment properties are determined
(in particular, the valuation techniques and key
inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the key
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

As at 30 June 2021:

R MRS R R M

12. REYE

TREHEBAREMENRABWREE (L
HRFMABERMEEIEGARE) WER
AREREAREFERRANEFETES
ABEENABEEEMS BN R LERER (F
—WMEE=R) -

R-ZE-_—FA=+8:

Fair value  Valuation techniques and Significant

Element hierarchy  key inputs unobservable inputs Range/Amount  Sensitivity

nE ARERR FERHREIZEAEE EXTURREANE 6888 BEE

Investment Level 3 Direct Comparison Method (based on Replacement costs HK$90,000,000  The higher the costs

properties the available in the relevant market and of constructions (2020: NIL) of constructions, the

made appropriate adjustments to reflect investment properties higher the fair values
the differences in the characteristics
between the investment properties and
the comparable properties)

RENE EE ERLBE (RERATRAG BB REENEERINEE 90,000000% RERARR:
LEEREIRRRENERTELR KA (ZZ2%5:E) MERR

WEZBLER)-

At the end of the reporting period, the net RBREHR BEVEZEEBFES
carrying amount of investment properties was 90,000,000 L (ZE=-_FF : £]&) °
HK$90,000,000 (2020: NIL).
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 13. 6 FEEE
Land Office
lease premises and
prepayment staff quarters Total
WAB R
TimHEEEMFR BEIES st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHET FHT
As at 1 January 2021 R=-F—_—%—H—H
(Unaudited) (REZFE) 343,560 2,969 346,529
Additions mE - - -
Depreciation expense WERX (6,879) = (6,879)
Exchange realignment ME 3, B - = =
As at 30 June 2021 R-ZZE_—%<AH
(Unaudited) =+8 (REEXR) 336,681 2,969 339,650

BHEREXECEEARA A
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging
from 30 to 90 days to its trade customers. The

14. B E 5 A

Kﬁlﬁﬁ,\%%ﬁkﬂ B 15 & H— & B30
EQOR -EWEBE S KREREZRAH 27 (0

ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the ﬁ%?)ﬁ@%??i)ﬁ@ﬂ%%‘%ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬂ?i
invoice dates, net of impairment loss, are stated as
follows:
At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
N-TZ—% A e
~A=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TAET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RESEE) (REeEZ)
0 to 60 days 0£60H - 1,636
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,439 153
91 to 180 days 91£180H 247 466
Over 180 days #1180 H 81,911 77,662
83,597 79,917

Included in the balances are debtors with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$83,597,000
(31 December 2020: approximately
HK$79,917,000) which have been past due at the
reporting date. The Group has not recognised any
impairment loss for these trade receivables on
the basis of (a) payments were noted from these
customers during the current period and (b) the
management would make its best efforts to collect
these outstanding balances and believes that
these outstanding balances will be substantially
recoverable at the end of 2021. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

*U\ & 4 2 BR T {E 4 A83,597,000/8 7T ( —

—TFE+-HF=+—H8: 479,917,000/
>m$w RENRE AR AR - AEH
WERZEERE S FHRIEERETMARER]E
HEREAQRAPBEE IZINRBEZERF
MAFEOEREBEEZAZ HKEZSE X
%a%ﬁ WEREZEHREELEHAI
APEBAR_ZE-—FRKE - NEFIS ER
?%%%hﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁm
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16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MRS R R M

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group has been granted by its suppliers’ credit

15. BfY B 5 KA

REEBEEHEERK T0E60HWEEH-

periods ranging from 30 to 60 days. The ageing ERNE S RIELREZAHRZIARER DT
analysis of trade payables based on the invoice T
dates are stated as follows:
At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
R-T¥Z-—%f§ RNR_E_TF
~AA=+H +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REB=) (REER)
0-30 days 0&30H 45 963
31-60 days 31260H - 392
61-90 days 61£290H 294 728
91-180 days 91£180H 36 839
Over 180 days HBi#180H 39,956 36,960
40,331 39,882

LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS

Loans from shareholders were unsecured, with the
interest rate ranging from 5%-15% and repayable
more than one year.

16. RERRHERK

KEBRRERNWERBEER FENF5%E

15% B HIBBE—Fo

BHEREXECEEARA A

T —FHRHARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

17. PROMISSORY NOTES

17. &R B

PN 5

On 13 March 2020, the Company issued
promissory note with principal amount of
HK$14,100,000 (“PN 5”) at par value in accordance
with the share subscription facility agreement
dated 13 March 2020 entered into among between
GEM Global Yield LLC SCS and GEM Yield
Bahamas Ltd and the Company. The PN 5 has a
maturity of 1 year from the date of issue and bear
coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued daily
and payable annually in arrears. The PN 5 are
denominated in HKS.

PN 6

On 13 March 2020, the Company issued
promissory note with principal amount of
HK$14,100,000 (“PN 6”) at par value in accordance
with the share subscription facility agreement
dated 13 March 2020 entered into among between
GEM Global Yield LLC SCS and GEM Yield
Bahamas Ltd and the Company. The PN 6 has
a maturity of 2 years from the date of issue and
bear coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued
daily and payable annually in arrears. The PN 6 are
denominated in HKS.

PN 7

On 13 March 2020, the Company issued
promissory note with principal amount of
HK$18,800,000 (“PN 7”) at par value in accordance
with the share subscription facility agreement
dated 13 March 2020 entered into among between
GEM Global Yield LLC SCS and GEM Yield
Bahamas Ltd and the Company. The PN 7 has
a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and
bear coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued
daily and payable annually in arrears. The PN 7 are
denominated in HKS.

The movement for the period on the PN5, PN6 and
PN7 were as follows:

o ERS

R-_TE-_FTFE=F+=0 AR FREGEM
Global Yield LLC SCS - GEM Yield Bahamas
LtdR A AR B A S -_TF=A
+TZHAREHNEERFERERTTAS
B4/514,100,0008 T & K 2K ([R R EHE
5]) o AN ERSHETHEBI1FREIE
EBRFEMNRA%EE R IREX o F S
EESABITTEHE -

5 E 76

R-ZBE-ZTF=A+=0 A2 AEEGEM
Global Yield LLC SCS - GEM Yield Bahamas
LtdR A AR B A S -_TF=H
TZEMREHNEERREEERTLAS
B8 514,100,0008 LA & K 2K ([RREHE
6]) o E N EIE6HE/TH BB 2FR I
ZEWFNRINER R BREX KT
ZIE6AB A E -

HAERT

RZZE_ZTF=A+=8" AR ARIEGEM
Global Yield LLC SCS - GEM Yield Bahamas
LtdR AR AR ZIB A -_EF=H
TZEMREHNEERREEERTLAS
%4 518,800,0008 LM A& K 215 ([RREHE
7)) AR EETAETEHBHIFREIE
ZEWMFNRINER Rt BREI RS
Z=IETABTTEHE -

BRN - A H RS AR BRSO R H R IRTE
T

PN5 PN6 PN7
REEES R EH6 RAERHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FEL
Balance at 1 January 2021 (unaudited) RN=Taar =

Ei (REER) 14,100 14,100 18,800

Balance at 30 June 2021 (unaudited) RZZEZ—F A=THZ&EH
(REE%) 14,100 14,100 18,800
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CcB6

In 2019, a winding up petition together with
appointment of provisional liquidators of the
Company on a light touch approach for financial
restructuring purposes was presented and filed with
the Supreme Court of Bermuda. The purpose of the
financial restructuring is to allow the Group to seek
to better preserve value and business operations
of the Group. As part of the Company’s financial
restructuring plans, the Company invited all known
creditors of the Company to make an offer to the
Company to subscribe for convertible bonds to
be issued by the Company and new shares of the
Company. The Company has received substantial
support from its creditors regarding its financial
restructuring plans and the plans were proceeded
accordingly.

Pursuant the Company’s financial restructuring
plans, on 29 June 2020, the Company issued
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,244,876,198 (“CB6").

The conversion price for CB6, subject to the usual
adjustments, is HK$0.55 per conversion share. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB6 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount
of HK$500,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares form the date of issue of the
CB6 up to and including the date falling on the 5th
day immediately prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB6 shall be entitled to request
the Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly)
by way of allotment and issuance of new shares
of the Company at the conversion price on the
due day of the interest payment in lieu of payment
by cash by giving not less than 2 business days’
written notice prior to the due date for payment
of interest. Such interest conversion arrangement
is only applicable to the 1% per annum interest
payment. The Company may redeem the CB6 at
any time prior to the maturity date in whole or any
part at the principal amount of such CB6 thereof
plus interest accrued thereon up to the actual date
of redemption by giving to the bond holder not less
than 5 business days’ written notice of its intention
to make such redemption.

BHEREXECEEARA A

R MRS R R M

18. Al R (& 55

FBAWTRIRES

RZFE-hF AEERBRERDERZX
ERRRBEREF ERAE [FEEG]] E5
FEERRBGR R AAMERBEE B
BEAEESAKBEZZMREAKEN
BEREBLEE-(ERARRMBEMTS
M—#n ARARMEEMNARRERE
ABEBFE UARBEARRR BTN
BREFRARE B - AR EE B ETB
EHEFBESEERANISE Zir8lEHxE
RREHETT

B ATRRESNEIREATR T IBR G
0558 HAX —MABMMAR - BF N
A BmREARTEREEZEIHARS
HH (BEZE)HE FAAUREESS
AEEAL R (KK L EE A500,000% T
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BA BRZMNBIHENEREEBALE
RETARRBNHBMODERNEINME (2
MRMLO)ARBRENK - BB R BRR
HERE AR IR FE R T % T EF S o AR A
AEBAEFFAAZELTOREEZRAE
MERBAXRTEESFHARABEN T
KRB ATEA R R IR B ST R RE S A
SRERAEZERED AR N ERHE
O 2B D E N AR RAE S

SEC-FRERE

29



30

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

18. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(CONTINUED)

CB6 (Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the
CB6 was calculated using future repayments
discounted at an estimate discount rate of 9.85%
per annum. The residual amount of approximately
HK$3,933,000 (being the difference between
the fair value of the CB6 at issuance date and
the fair value of the liability component on initial
recognition) is assigned as the equity component
and is included in equity heading convertible
bond equity reserve. The liability component is
subsequently stated at fair value, with changes
recorded in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of the convertible bonds is
determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the valuation report prepared by
an independent professional valuer, by applying
discounted cash flow model on the liability
component and Binomial Tree Model on the equity
component and derivative component, if any.

CB7

On 17 April 2021, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with GEM Global Yield,
LCC SC5 (“Subscriber”), pursuant to which the
Subscriber has agreed to subscribe, and the
Company has agreed to issue the convertible bonds
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$25,000,000
(“CB7”), on the terms and subject to conditions set
out therein.

Upon full conversion of the CB7 at the conversion
price of HK$0.10 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments), a total of 250,000,000 conversion
shares will be issued, representing approximately
3.00% of the existing issued share capital of the
Company and approximately 2.92% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
issue of the conversion shares. The conversion
shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the
general mandate granted to the Directors at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
31 July 2020.
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18. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MRS R R M

18. A/ IR 1E % (&)

(CONTINUED)
CB 7 (Continued) FETHOTBRRES (F)
CB6 CB7
Eoait £t
o] i J% 5 5 o] 1 B & 5
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Balance at 1 January 2021 (Audited) R—E-_—F—H—H
B BRI B R ) 820,236 -
Fair value of liability components on R AEE D
initial recognition NAE - 25,000
Effective interest expenses (note 6) ERF B (MiEe) 45,780 =
Balance at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) RZE-_—FXA=+H
BiEER (REER) 866,016 25,000
Balance at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) R=ZF=—%F7<xA=1H
2R (REEZ)
CB6 CB7
ENit £t
o] i J% 5 5 Gk Y AL
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHETT TAET
Carrying amount repayable ARUTHRAEEZ
RE{E
More than one year but not exceeding —F A FEBRFARA
five years 866,016 25,000

BHEREXECEEARA A
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20.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

B ER R M EE
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 19. EZRAIE
At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
R-FZ—%§ R_E_EF
~A=+H +—-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEE) (REEFEZ)
Contracted but not provided for: EHENEES: T =E
Construction of properties I EEE 85,831 75,478
Authorised but not contracted for: EHLEERETA -
Construction of properties ESERS 360,490 328,551
Note: Capital commitment for construction of properties M- MERZINERNARESANTEFREG LT
related to capital commitment for construction BEERBRBENERNEE BRIBEAEE
of film studio and hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The BB TR LS
authorised amount was approved by the Directors WE (NAEMEE L AR ERESE KA
according to the land lease agreements signed MREEBNEELE) FHAEELED
between the Group and the local authority in RESEHE-
Foshan, the PRC, in relation to the leasing of
lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 20 B R R 5

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements,
during the six months ended 30 June 2021, the
Group did not pay any interest (2020: approximately
HK$265,000) to a shareholder and director of the
Company.

The emoluments paid or payable to key
management personal during the six months ended
30 June 2021 was approximately HK$3,420,000
(2020: HK$3,332,000).

Interim Report 2021

BRARKEZBASREMBRRANEMIL D AT
WEEIN REE-_Z-_—FA=+81t
NEA AEBRARARREEREEIMIE
(ZZE=ZF : 4265,00070) °

RBEE-_ZTZ-_—FXA=+tHLEXEAEZX
BN EEEE A8 MF N A%3,420,000
Bt (=T 4 :3,332,000 BL) °



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$64.02 million, representing
an increase of HK$47.80 million as compared to that
in the six months ended 30 June 2020. The increase
in revenue was mainly attributable to the development
of the new business, namely digital commerce, by
the Group, which generated income of approximately
HK$60.02 million during the period under review.

Other operating expenses for the period under review
increased to approximately HK$88.24 million from
approximately HK$34.02 million in the corresponding
period in 2020. The Group recorded an increase in other
operating expenses of approximately HK$54.23 million
due to the digital commence business undertaken by the
Group during the period under review.

Finance costs for the period under review decreased
to approximately HK$61.13 million from approximately
HK$84.61 million for the corresponding period in 2020,
mainly due to the absence of interest on bonds and the
decrease in interest on loan from Shareholders as a result
of the Group’s restructuring transaction, notwithstanding
the increase in interest on convertible bonds.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$115.03 million
as compared to a net profit of approximately HK$689.82
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. Such
increase in the net loss was mainly due to the increase in
other operating expense and the absence of impact on
financial restructuring during the period under review as
compared to the corresponding period in 2020.
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Bt %5 1B R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER R DT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the
Group’s Xigiao National Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”)
and National Arts Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”) (collectively
the “Xiqiao National Arts Film Studio Project’) has
the view of Mount Xigiao which is known as one of the
national 5-star tourist attractions and has total developed
land area of 444,000 square meters. There are unique
film shooting areas throughout the Studio along with
theme parks, hotel and performing arts complexes. The
Studio incorporates sightseeing and recreational facilities
which make it the most international vacation resort in
Guangdong Province. Over the past years, the Studio
successfully organised a number of events, including
the “Fairy Aquatic Exhibition and Dinosaur Exhibition”,
“Boutique Lingnan Study Tour”, “National Arts Mid-
Autumn Festival Journey and Northern Lights Night”,
“June 1 Family Green Photography Tour”, etc. In addition,
the Group’s National Arts Brilliant Emperor Cinematic
Action Stunt Training Center (B8 12 F % B {E 45 15
A L), which combines films and televisions, culture
and tourism and teaching activities, aiming to nurture the
next generation of movie and television elites. Meanwhile,
the Group has participated in several charity groups
on education. The Studio cooperated with charitable
organisations such as Caritas and Po Leung Kuk to
organise study group events for students to participate
and to explore different culture and film production in the
Studio. The Group believes that the events held by the
Group will effectively improve the brand awareness of the
Studio and will push the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio
Project to the peak.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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Travel

National Arts Travel Limited (“NA Travel”) has been
established and commenced its business since 2015.
It provides one-stop travel services especially for
major organizations, associations and tourists with
“Diversification, Professionalism, and Internationalism” as
their principles, and formulates flexible and comfortable
travel plans and personalized products. To enhance
the comprehensive customer support and increase its
travel agency’s market competitiveness, NA Travel has
updated its accounting, inquiry and sales system in
2018. In addition to optimizing traditional group tours,
travel insurance, international flight and hotel booking,
it also organises customized group tours, providing
extraordinary experience for travelers, including private
tours, business trainings and activities, honeymoon
and wedding plans, cruise vacations, professional and
featured tours, etc. In 2019, NA Travel initiated the
“Charity Tours” (“# 2 Z Jik” ) in Zhaoqing and Foshan for
large organizations and also arranged “Trip to Resort of
National Arts Studio” (“BIE R k¥ E RE 2 IK") for
disabled group to fulfil corporate social responsibilities.

In addition, in order to diversify its product lines, NA
Travel established “Skyyer Travel (B84 £ k%#)” in
2018 through the Travel Industry Council of Hong
Kong. Skyyer Travel presents a fresh brand image with
the slogan “What Travel means is...... you decide to
go and take action! (FREEFLE ...... BEIBLEY) " It
specializes in designing “Tailor-made tours for sport,
hobby and industry” and invites various celebrities as
guests to create “Star-class Travel” which categorizes
into Sport-themed Travel (golfing, marathon, cycling,
basketball, table tennis, darts, kung fu, swimming,
diving, dragon boat, yoga, dancing), Art-themed Travel
(painting, photography, tea ceremony, music), Taste-
themed Travel (food and wine tasting), Religion-themed
Travel (Christianity, Buddhism, Taoism), etc., providing
customers with unique experiences of in-depth tours.
In 2019, to make its products more international and
specialized, Skyyer Travel expanded beyond Asia for the
first time and entered regions in Europe and the Middle
East, including seeking the famous red wine producing
areas in Bordeaux, France, visiting luxury and world-
renowned buildings in Dubai and Abu Dhabi. Meanwhile,
Skyyer Travel organized “Theme Activity Travel”, including
international darts tournament, wing chun tournament,
hung kuen tournament, concert and beauty contest,
etc. In the third quarter of 2019, Skyyer Travel also
participated in a Sports Expo and held “Skyyer Travel
Brand and Outstanding Athlete Award Ceremony” for
the first time in order to achieve branding and marketing
effects.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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EEER R DT

In order to align with the current education blueprint of
“Broadening horizon and life-long learning”, NA Travel
established “National Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert (
L EE K ) through the Travel Industry Council of
Hong Kong at the beginning of 2019, which specializes
in assisting primary and secondary schools, universities,
social groups and institutions to plan and organize
different cultural exchange and education activities with
foreign counterparts. Under the mission that “Study tours
are provided to broaden horizon, acquire knowledge, and
have real experience” and the philosophy of “Exploring
the world, making friends and enriching life”, it provides
professional itinerary advice and considerate services,
coupled with new elements, including trainings for
language, interests, history, arts, science and technology,
leadership and team building. Study tours cover Foshan,
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Dongguan, Shanxi in China,
Taiwan, Korea, Singapore, etc. The goal is to make
sure that every participant will have an unforgettable
experience. In order to align with the development of
the Greater Bay Area, National Arts Cultural Study Tour
Expert organized a corporate inspection delegation
themed “Greater Bay Area Youth Entrepreneurship
Tour” spanning Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Foshan and
Dongguan in late 2019, which broke with traditional
tourist routes for scenic spots, instead, it opened a new
era for entrepreneurs to study and exchange in famous
enterprises. In the coming future, National Arts Cultural
Study Tour Expert will set to input more resources to
develop into the Greater Bay Area, so as to embrace new
market trends.

Furthermore, at the end of 2019, NA Travel and National
Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert entered into a “Greater
Bay Area Strategic Cooperation Agreement” with a media
organization, aiming to implement a number of Greater
Bay Area cultural and business exchanges and inspection
activities, and assist industrial leaders and potential elites
to have a deeper understanding on the unique culture
and local customs and practices of the “9+2” cities in the
Greater Bay Area, so that they can be well prepared to
cultural differences before tapping into the Greater Bay
Area market.

In order to give the Group’s customers a better
understanding on the products and policies of the
Group’s travel agency, the Group launched various travel
publications, including: “Special Edition for Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (five themes:
Corporate Exchange, Volunteer Services, Team Building,
Experience Activities, Exploring the Ancients and
Seeking its Origin)”, “Guidebook for Skyyer Theme Travel
Collection”, “Study Tour Special Edition for National
Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert”, “Recommendation for
Special Package Tour of NA Travel”, etc.
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Currently, NA Travel has expanded its digital marketing
business in all directions, and entered into a platform
cooperation agreement with a travel platform operated
by a large Chinese-funded institution in early 2020. In the
future, NA Travel will also focus on tourism technology to
tap into their huge market potential.

On the other hand, NA Travel and Skyyer Travel are also
committed themselves to social responsibilities, including
the “1st Hong Kong Youth Festival — Sports Carnival and
Record-setting Darts Event (F— BB EEFH—EE &=
FEET ARZEAIAEE) ", “Sowers Action — Boundless
Teaching Charity Concert (BT -~ EHEBES 54
)", “Kind-Hearted Fellow under “Smiling Again, Hong
Kong People” Program (BB AXABEFENSZ LA
174 )" etc. In the future, they will continue to actively
participate in charitable activities and pay back to society
to pursue the Group’s aspiration for public welfare.

In 2020, all outbound and inbound tourism businesses
were badly hit by the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19")
pandemic and came to a halt during the whole year.
The uncertainties are expected to continue until the first
half of 2021. However, by virtue of NA Travel's well-
established and well-planned foundation as well as NA
Travel’s competitive advantages, including the “Themed
Interest Tours” and the “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area Inspection Tour” which have been
developed and deployed, the Group is confident that the
travel business will have a steady and robust rebound in
the fourth quarter of 2021 when the pandemic is over.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project. It covers 374,000
square meters of land, including a lake of 120,000 square
meters and numbers of indoor and outdoor studios which
are equipped with excellent and comprehensive ancillary
facilities in order to provide the Southern China and
foreign shooting crews the most realistic and delicate
scenes.
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By virtue of the extensive choices of scenes, supreme
geographical location and multifunctional ancillary
services, the film shooting base has been heavily used by
the production crews. Since 2017, the Group has taken
the role of rental agent by entering into several rental
agreements with a number of companies renting film
shooting equipment. The partners provide the plentiful
props, attires and high-tech shooting equipment including
lots of ancient costumes of Ming and Qing dynasties,
antique furniture, simulated ordnance and other
performing props. It generates substantial revenue to
the Group. Besides creating enormous synergistic effect
for the Group, it also enhances the Group’s capability of
provision of ancillary services in respect of film shooting,
and also facilitates centralization of the industry as well
as strengthen the Group’s competitiveness among its
peers. On 4 January 2018, Foshan Bureau of Culture,
Publication, Radio, Film and Television (the “Bureau”)
approved a few wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company to assist the Bureau in the operation and
expansion (i) that would facilitate film enterprises from
various regions moving into Foshan, policy presentation,
solicitation of investment and funding as well as shooting,
etc.; (i) of digital studio and film location construction
projects; and (iii) in respect of diversification of props and
equipment portfolio, leasing and consolidation of props
leasing business.

The Group is also the first enterprise designated by
the Foshan Government to help building Foshan as the
largest operation hub for props and equipment in Foshan,
with focus on film and television industry, which boosted
the reputation of the Group in the industry, thereby
further consolidating the presence of the Studio in the
film and television industry in Southern China.

Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned
domestic wedding photography chain group in the fourth
quarter of 2013 to develop its brand-new wedding
photography business. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Group leased the Studio with an area of approximately
20 mu (13,3383.33 square meters) for a term of 12 years
and the wedding photography company invested RMB10
million for the construction of scenic spots in different
styles such as European, Korean and Japanese styles.
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Hotel

The 5-star Hotel located next to the Studio provides
over 350 suites facilitated from deluxe suites to signature
rooms. The Hotel offers a wide range of dining choices
and high-quality food services, it has 6 specialties
restaurants with Chinese and foreign styles, offering high-
class food and wine from around the world. The Hotel
is also equipped with a variety of recreational facilities
such as Spa, gym room, swimming pools and tea house,
allowing travelers to enjoy themselves within the Hotel in
all respects including dining, drinking and entertainment.

In addition, the Hotel also provides catering services
and business centre, meeting rooms and lecture
halls, thereby satisfy essential needs and wants of the
customers. To boost high quality service, the Hotel
wishes to build strong communication among its staff by
organising group activities such as sport day, in order
to educate the staff of the importance of team work and
to raise spirit in the corporate environment. Besides, the
Hotel was awarded “19th Golden Horse Award of China
Hotel — Best Theme Hotel Resort of Greater Bay Area”
which recognized the corporate management quality and
service quality of the Hotel.

Film Production

The Group spared no effort in promoting film culture
for many years such as production of and investment
in movie, microcinema and online TV programme to
promote the culture and the spirit of entertainment.

During 2016, the Group invested in the production of
a charity flm named “Our Days in 6E” (FfH6ELT) .
The theme of “Our Days in 6E” is in line with the current
social status, laden with educational significance as part
of its social responsibility. The Group expects to invest
more in the production of films of various themes with an
intention to step forward to the diversified film market.

Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has been cooperating with its joint venture for the
development of cinema business in a large shopping mall
in a transportation hub area of Zhuhai, Guangdong, the
PRC.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture.
The cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than
730 seats. The cinema has commenced its operation
since May 2014 which supports further comprehensive
development of the Group’s entertainment and culture
business.
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Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artists such
as Rose Chan and Brian Yuen, the Group has arranged
a variety of performance opportunities including the
participation in the charity movie, “Our Days in 6E” (&
fI®I6E #E), the modern romantic movie, “Romantic
Marriage” (48R AIE 7% ) .

Besides, the Group also explores the PRC market for its
artists by making arrangement for them to participate
in live reality show and online drama to enhance their
popularity.

Development of New Business

As the global economy was embracing new development
opportunities against headwinds, the Group actively
sought breakthroughs in new businesses in 2020 and
made efforts in the digital technology area. The Group’s
digital technology layout will first give priority to new
pattern of consumption and new economy, and focus on
“digital commerce” and “cross-border e-commerce”.

Digital commerce business

Guangzhou is the center of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, with its commerce and trade
industry ranking first in China in terms of development
and scale. According to the policies of the Guangzhou
Government, the Guangzhou Government will devote
efforts in building a pilot zone for new commerce and
trade innovation cluster in Guangzhou in the future,
while Guangzhou International Commodity Exhibition
& Trade City will become the core area. Currently, the
trade city focuses on the wholesale of daily necessities
and exquisite snacks, with accumulative transaction
scale exceeding RMB200 billion, being in an upward
development cycle. Guangzhou National Arts Huiying
Film & Television Co., Ltd. (M BIEE Y R EEER
A Al) (“Huiying”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a strategic cooperation agreement with partners
including Guangdong International Commodity Exhibition
& Trade City Co., Ltd., and jointly established Guangzhou
Lingbian Digital Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (&
MEEHFHEEE AR QA (“Lingbian Digital”).
Lingbian Digital was licensed to be the sole value-added
service management company in Guangzhou International
Commodity Exhibition & Trade City.
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Guangzhou International Commodity Exhibition & Trade
City commenced trial operation in November 2020, and
held a series of offline activities for the “Rebate Shopping
Spree CGR AT B ES) ”, which is unprecedented in
the wholesale industry. The event was fully coordinated
and executed by Huiying. The sales exceeded RMB10
million in the first two hours and total sales for all
merchants exceeded RMB40 million in three days,
becoming a legend.

Cross-border E-commerce Business

The Group has always been determined to actively
embrace the new economy and explore other
development opportunities, and is committed to
seeking a diversified business layout. In particular, to
set a footprint in the digital e-commerce business is
an important part of the diversified business strategy
of the Group. In 2020, the Group established National
Arts Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (B2 H BRI AR
2 7)) (“NA Digital”), to vigorously expand its cross-
border digital e-commerce and digital marketing business
and achieve integrated marketing of contents, channels
and traffic. Its principal businesses include market
development, customer relationship maintenance,
project strategy, platform channel, execution and
coordination services, as well as the operation of
online service platforms and production of content for
influencers and artistes, targeting the markets in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. NA
Digital boasts a digital e-commerce service team with
deep understanding of domestic and overseas markets,
premium brands and product networks, and maintains
in-depth cooperation with major social and e-commerce
platforms to provide full-chain services for the promotion
of digital e-commerce of cross-border brands in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

The “Bay Area Cloud Warehouse (EREZE &) ", a digital
technology-focused industrial cluster platform under
NA Digital, also officially established presence in the
Guangzhou International Commodity Exhibition & Trade
City jointly established by the Group and Guangzhou
Commercial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (BN
BREERESEBHABRAA) (“Guangzhou Commercial
Holdings”), a wholly state-owned enterprise under
Guangzhou government, marking another milestone of
the Group’s development in digital e-commerce matrix.

As a cross-border import consumer service platform, Bay
Area Cloud Warehouse focuses on digital technology,
and leverages on the Group’s entertainment, film and
television ecosystem to empower the development of
the platform. It aims to build a world-class marketing
platform with regional synergy by gathering world-class
quality products, coordinating and promoting resources,
and adopting the new model of combining online and
offline advantages.
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In the fourth quarter of 2020, the Group invited one of
the most representative industrial and commercial groups
in Hong Kong, the Youth Committee of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong (the “CMA
Youth Committee”), which gathered the resources of
many young entrepreneurs and manufacturers, to support
the launch of products under the cooperation program of
BuyLive (a new e-commerce live streaming platform) and
ViuTV. In 2021, the Group once again cooperated with a
number of famous brands of the CMA Youth Committee
through the “Skyyer Live- streaming Sale for Chinese New
Year (<SS ERHERE) "

In 2020, the digital e-commerce business actively made
deployment to demonstrate the development potential
of the Group and the importance of digital e-commerce
business development. It also marked the development
advantages and direction of NA Digital’s new digital
commerce business layout planning featuring “service-
originated aggregation, aggregation-driven transactions,
transaction-generated data, and data-based finance”.

Investment Properties in Malaysia

In order to further the horizontal development of the
Group’s hotel operation in overseas market, the Company
has successfully acquired the 26 units of service suites
of Golden Straits Morib (“Investment Properties”)
in Malaysia where are located at PT 294, Kawasaki
Kanchong Laut McKim Morib 42700 Banting Selangor
Darul Ehsan Malaysia on 24 March 2021. The Company
intends to hold the Investment Properties and lease the
Investment Properties to the seller for its operations. At
the same time, the seller and the guarantor have agreed
to guarantee the Company with the minimum return
from the Investment Properties for the first five years
commencing from 1 January 2023. The Board believes
that the acquisition of the Investment Properties can
diversify the hotel operation of the Group in overseas
market in the coming years. Details of the acquisition of
the Investment Properties are set out in the paragraph
headed “Discloseable Transaction — Acquisition of the
Target Company” in this report.

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic to the Group

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the
operation of the Studio and the Hotel has been
temporarily suspended since 24 January 2020 and
29 January 2020 respectively (the “Temporary
Suspension”). In view of the relief of the epidemic in
the PRC, the operation of the Studio and the Hotel
has resumed from 16 May 2020. As the Hotel has
been designated as a quarantine hotel by the Foshan
Government since September 2020, it is required to be
temporarily closed to the public and only used for serving
guests who are subject to quarantine coming from
abroad.
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With the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group’s revenue from the Hotel and the Studio for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 decreased drastically when
compared to that for the six months ended 30 June
2020. Nevertheless, following the introduction of new
business, namely digital commerce, the Group is able
to generate additional revenue. During the period under
review, the Group recorded an increase of total revenue
of approximately HK$47.80 million when compared to
that for the corresponding period in 2020. As a result,
the Group’s liquidity was not severely worsened due to
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic during the period
under review. The principal business of the Group is in
the entertainment industry, which is an area severely
affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Shall
the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic continue,
the Group’s loss position as well as liquidity may be
worsened due to the loss of revenue from the Studio and
the Hotel.

In order to reduce the cash outflow of the Group, the
businesses of the Studio and the Hotel are outsourced to
the operation team for operation starting from 2021. The
Group can share the profit of the income from the Studio
and the Hotel without payment of the operating expenses
of the Studio and the Hotel.

Since the Group’s business was adversely affected in the
early stage of the COVID-19 pandemic, the management
realised that a single business was exposed to the risk of
force majeure. Therefore, the Group has been planning
to diversify its business. In late 2020, the management
adjusted the Group’s business to develop the digital
commerce business. As a result, the new business
contributed approximately 94% of the Group’s revenue
during its trial operation in the first half of 2021.

FUTURE PROSPECT

Benefiting from the opportunities brought by the
construction of the Belt and Road Initiative, the
development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, as well as the opening of the Hong
Kong section of the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Express Rail Link and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge, the China National Tourism Administration is
able to bring more convenience to overseas visitors to
travel within the Greater Bay Area, strengthen market
supervision, promote marketing and cooperation, and
support the industry to develop more “one travel with
multi-stops” tourism products. Hong Kong may become
a “transit station” in the Greater Bay Area, and travel
agencies are expected to design more intra-Bay tourism
products, such as corporate inspection tour, film-induced
tourism and special interest group tour, in response to
the development of the Greater Bay Area.
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With aging population, more senior people choose to
travel abroad after retirement. Travel agencies will design
more medium to short itineraries, and expand the cruise
market to provide a more diverse travel experience to
cater the needs of the senior people. As young people
pay more attention to tourism and cultural experience,
in-depth travelling is increasingly popular among them.
Therefore, the travel agencies will design tours with more
characteristics, such as sports tourism, art tourism,
experience tourism and religious tourism, in order to
attract young travelers.

The demand for business travel is increasing, and the
opening of the two major infrastructures, namely, the
Hong Kong section of the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Express Rail Link and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge, has greatly enhanced the advantages of
connection between Hong Kong and the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. Travel agencies are
expected to expand tourism in related fields, cooperate
with the Group’s resort hotels and studios, and launch
corporate training and communication experiences and
theme activity tourism to meet the needs of corporate
customers.

Furthermore, in order to diversify business and disperse
risks, the Group has further expanded its digital
e-commerce and digital marketing business, including
establishing strategic partnerships with different brands
and platforms. The Group’s Bay Area Cloud Warehouse
has integrated resources of multiple parties in conjunction
with the matrix strategy of Guangzhou International
Commodity Exhibition & Trade City to provide one-stop
solutions. It will focus on digital trade and exhibition
platform to develop four major service ecosystems,
namely intellectual property service system, foreign trade
service system, business expansion services and chain
financial services (i @ ARTS) , with a view to the
strategic ecological development of “one center, four
major services”. It aims to provide one-stop cross-border
e-commerce services to brand owners, including product
selection, warehousing, logistics, customs clearance
and online store operation. As a pioneer in the digital
e-commerce industry in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, the Group’s digital technology
division is expected to play a big role in boosting its
business, and will become a new profit growth driver
promoting the steady improvement of its performance.
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In the future, the Group will exploit its geographical
location in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, one of the four major bay areas in the world,
and upgrade its business operations. In addition to
enhancing research in education field, the Group will
earnestly develop digital technology to empower eight
aspects, namely smart intelligent property rights, trade
and exhibition, cross-border, membership, public domain,
private domain, ecological system and finance. It is
expected that more quality products, resources and
channels will join hands to establish a foothold in the
Greater Bay Area and go global.

PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY
NAME

The Board proposes to change the name of the
Company from “National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited” to “National Arts Group Holdings Limited”
and adopt the Chinese name “ BEIE £ EERAFRE A
A]” as its official Chinese name (“Change of Company
Name”). The Board will propose special resolution at
the special general meeting of the Company (*“SGM”) for
considering, and if thought fit, approving the Change of
Company. The reason for changing the Company’s name
is precisely to reflect the direction of the diversification
of business in order to reduce the risk of single business
segments. The Board believes that the proposed new
English and Chinese names of the Company will provide
the Company with better identification of the principal
business of the Group. As such, the Board is of the
view that the proposed Change of Company Name is
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. The proposed Change of Company Name
is subject to the following conditions: (i) the passing
of the special resolution by the Shareholders at the
SGM approving the Change of Company Name; and (ii)
the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda approving the
Change of Company Name and entering the proposed
new English and Chinese name of the Company into the
register of companies.

The special resolution approving the Change of Company
Name was passed at the SGM held on 5 October 2020
by the Shareholders.
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Subsequent to the passing of the special resolution
in respect of the Change of Company Name by the
Shareholders at the SGM on 5 October 2021, the
Change of Company Name is still subject to the approval
by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda, which will
take effect upon the date of the issue of a Certificate
of Incorporation on the Change of Company Name by
the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. The Company
will then carry out all necessary registration and filing
procedures with the Companies Registry in Hong Kong.
Further announcement(s) will be issued by the Company
to inform the Shareholders of the effective date of the
Change of Company Name, the new stock short names
for trading of the securities of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, the new logo and the new website of the
Company as and when appropriate.

Further details of the proposed Change of Company
Name are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 23 March 2020, the Company’s circular dated
11 September 2020 and the Company’s poll results
announcement dated 5 October 2020.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED
PURSUANT TO SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT

As announced on 19 August 2019, the Company
proposed to implement, subject to the approval by the
Bermuda Court and the Hong Kong Court, the scheme
of arrangement (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the
Company will issue new shares of the Company and
the convertible bonds to its creditors to discharge and
release the debt owing by the Company to its creditors in
full.

On 29 June 2020, the Company issued the
convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,244,876,198 (the “2020 Convertible Bonds”).
The 2020 Convertible Bonds bear interest at 1% annual
coupon rate payable annually from the issue date of
the 2020 Convertible Bonds. The conversion period
of the 2020 Convertible Bonds is from 29 June 2023
to 28 June 2025 during which period the holders of
the 2020 Convertible Bonds can convert the 2020
Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per conversion share
(the “2020 Conversion Shares”). Assuming the exercise
in full of the conversion rights (the “2020 Conversion
Rights”) attached to the 2020 Convertible Bonds at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per Conversion
Share, an aggregate of 2,263,411,269 Shares (with an
aggregate nominal value of HK$226,341,126.9) will be
issued.
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Dilutive impact of the conversion of the 2020
Convertible Bonds

Assuming that there is no change in share capital of
the Company since the date of this report and the
2020 Conversion Rights are exercised in full at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.55, the number of
issued shares of the Company will be increased by
2,2683,411,269, representing 27.19% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report (i.e.
8,323,868,369 Shares) and approximately 21.38% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the 2020 Conversion Shares. Such
allotment and issue of the 2020 Conversion Shares will
result in the respective shareholdings of the shareholders
being diluted by approximately 21.38%.

Assuming that save for the exercise of the 2020
Conversion Rights in full in relation to the respective 2020
Convertible Bonds issued to the substantial shareholders
(within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) of the
Company, there is no other change in the shareholding
of the substantial shareholders of the Company since the
date of this report, the shareholding of the substantial
shareholders of the Company as at the date of this
report immediately before and after the exercise of the
2020 Conversion Rights is set out below for illustration
purposes:

Shareholding immediately
before the exercise of
the 2020 Conversion Rights
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Shareholding immediately
after the exercise of
the 2020 Conversion Rights
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Approximate Approximate

Number of  percentage of Number of  percentage of

Name of Shareholder Shares held shareholding Shares held shareholding
& 11334

Y4 BERGBHE muEstt  HERGHE maE S
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note) B E (Fs) 1,584,147,296 19.03%  1,616,668,031 15.27%
Ms. Law Po Yee (Note) BER L (M) 1,584,147,296 19.03%  1,616,668,031 15.27%

Note: Mr. Sin and Ms. Law beneficially owned 1,529,983,985
Shares and 54,163,311 Shares respectively. Mr. Sin and
Ms. Law are spouses and thus Mr. Sin and Ms. Law were
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which their
spouse was interested by virtue of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
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Diluted loss per share for the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2021 was the same as basic loss per share as
the impact of the exercise of the 2020 Convertible Bonds
is anti-dilutive.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had total net assets of
approximately HK$586.76 million. Based on the financial
and liquidity positions of the Group and to the best
knowledge and belief of the Company, the Company
expects that it will be able to meet its redemption
obligations under the 2020 Convertible Bonds.

An analysis of the Company’s share price at which it
would be equally financially advantageous for the holders
of the 2020 Convertible Bonds to convert or redeem the
2020 Convertible Bonds based on their implied internal
rate of return (and therefore the holders of the 2020
Convertible Bonds would be indifferent as to whether the
2020 Convertible Bonds are converted or redeemed) at a
range of dates in the future is set out below:

HRTE_ZE_EFIRRESFEELEREEY
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EREARGEEENERETIHRESRANE
BAAR -

RIB-Z—FRXA=1TH AEEFEELBD
58676§,%}%§7E ?ﬁﬂi‘ilzﬁﬂ%&iﬁ@bﬁé&#
T AR AERRBRMA RS NRAR ARG A
NETZF=F iTT@Hxﬁ%IﬁTZEEEEEO

BREBRETAH S _SFURKRELFHE
SARERE(REARH T _FTFAHRRES
BEAMS EHRFBER S _ZFaBREREST
ﬂ%%) TECTFABRRESFZFER AERY
T -TFAMRBRESFBESREEFN &
;@uﬁ@ ZZJS AREDTEHINWT

5 T >

Share price
&
(HK$)
BT

30 June 2021

29 June 2025 (i.e. the maturity date of
the 2020 Convertible Bonds)
=)

——#XA=+A

“ERFRAZTAR
T_TFEABRES
|8 H)

(Bl==

B AR 170.55
0.55 per Share
B A1 0.55
0.55 per Share

POSSIBLE OFFER FOR CONVOY
GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
26 March 2020, the Board is discussing with certain
shareholders of Convoy Global Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1019) (“Convoy”) in relation to a possible
acquisition of the issued shares of Convoy (the “Convoy
Shares”) by the Company in the consideration of the
Company’s new shares (the “Possible Share Exchange
Transaction”). The Possible Share Exchange Transaction
did not proceed further.

Possible Offer

On 22 June 2020, the Board approached the board
of directors of Convoy (the “Convoy Board”) about
a conditional voluntary share exchange offer by the
Company to acquire all of the issued shares in the
share capital of Convoy, subject to fulfilment of certain
conditions (the “Possible Offer”).
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Following the approach, the Board discussed with the
Convoy Board further details of the Possible Offer,
including how and when the Possible Offer could be
made, bearing in mind the financial and other information
which would be required to be included in documentation
to be sent to shareholders of the Company and Convoy
in relation to the Possible Offer.

Based on the latest published audited accounts of
Convoy for the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
the Board expected that the Possible Offer, if it were to
proceed, would constitute either a major transaction or
a very substantial acquisition for the Company under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules. This would involve
consent from shareholders of the Company and require
publication of extensive financial information about
Convoy and its subsidiaries which was then not available.

On 14 August 2020, the Company received a letter from
the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange informing
the Company its decision that the Possible Offer will
constitute a reverse takeover of the Company under Rule
19.06B of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company will
be treated as a new listing applicant under Rule 19.54
of the GEM Listing Rules if the Possible Offer were to
proceed (the “Decision”).

The Board disagreed with the Decision and had
submitted a formal request to the Stock Exchange for a
review of the Decision by the GEM Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 4.06(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Review”).

The hearing for Review by the GEM Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange (the “Review Hearing”) took place
on 4 November 2020. On 23 November 2020 the GEM
Listing Committee informed National Arts that it upheld
the Decision citing the same reason for the Decision
by the Listing Division (the “GEM Listing Committee
Decision”).

The Company disagreed with the GEM Listing Committee
Decision, and had submitted a formal request to the
secretary of the GEM Listing Review Committee of the
Stock Exchange on 2 December 2020 for a review of
the GEM Listing Committee Decision by the GEM Listing
Review Committee of the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rule 4.06(2) of the GEM Listing Rules (the “GEM Listing
Review Committee Review”).

Nonetheless, given the GEM Listing Committee Decision
and foreseeable obstacles, on 24 November 2020,
the Company approached the Convoy Board about a
pre-conditional voluntary partial share exchange offer
(the “Proposed Partial Share Exchange Offer”).
Completion of the Proposed Partial Share Exchange Offer
is subject to fulfilment or waiver of certain conditions.
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Following the approach, the Board discussed with the
Convoy Board further details of the Proposed Partial
Share Exchange Offer, including how and when it can be
made, bearing in mind the financial and other information
which would be required to be included in documentation
to be sent to shareholders of the Company and Convoy
in relation to the Proposed Partial Share Exchange Offer.

As certain applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) for the Company in respect
of the transactions in connection with the Proposed
Partial Share Exchange Offer exceed 25% but all of the
percentage ratios are less than 100%, the Proposed
Partial Share Exchange Offer, if it were to proceed, would
constitute a major transaction for the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules, and the Proposed Partial Share
Exchange Offer together with the allotment and issue of
new Shares by way of specific mandate are therefore
conditional upon, among other things, the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting.

As disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company
and Convoy dated 15 March 2021, the Board has come
to a decision to discontinue pursuing the Proposed
Partial Share Exchange Offer given it has taken longer
than the Board has originally anticipated.

In place of the withdrawal of the Proposed Partial Share
Exchange Offer, the Company and Convoy are currently
exploring other avenues of cooperation but no concrete
plan has been formed as at the date of this report.

Further announcements will be made by Convoy and
the Company pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) as and when
required. Convoy and the Company consider that the
withdrawal of the Proposed Partial Share Exchange Offer
will not have any material adverse effect on the existing
financial position or business operations of Convoy or the
Company.

For the purposes of the Takeovers Code, the offer period
of the Company commenced on 29 July 2020 and ended
on 15 March 2021.

Details of the Possible Offer are set out in the joint
announcements of the Company and Convoy dated
29 July 2020, 28 August 2020, 28 September 2020,
28 October 2020, 27 November 2020, 24 December
2020, 25 January 2021, 25 February 2021 and 15 March
2021, the announcements of the Company dated 30 July
2020, 17 August 2020, 21 August 2020, 3 September
2020, 30 October 2020 and 2 December 2020 and
the next day disclosure returns of the Company dated
13 August 2020 and 20 November 2020.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION
— ACQUISITION OF THE TARGET
COMPANY

On 29 January 2021, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Advanced Oasis International Holding Limited (the
“Seller”) and Chu Hin Ming, Alfonso (the “Guarantor”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire from the Seller the entire issued share
capital of Majestic Bravo Limited at the consideration
of HK$90,000,000 (the “Consideration”) (the
“Acquisition”), which shall be settled by the allotment
and issue of 900,000,000 shares of the Company (the
“New Shares”) by the Company to the Seller upon
completion of the Acquisition (“Completion”).

The target Company will through its subsidiaries hold
100% ownership of the Investment Properties.

Each of the Seller and the Guarantor agreed and
undertook with the Company that unless with the prior
written consent of the Company, the Seller shall not,
whether directly or indirectly, (1) at any time during the
period of 6 months following the date of Completion (the
“Completion Date”), dispose of, or agree or contract
to dispose of, either directly or indirectly, conditionally
or unconditionally, any of the 900,000,000 New Shares
issued and allotted by the Company to the Seller at
Completion pursuant to the Agreement or any interest
therein or any voting right or any other right attaching
thereto; and (2) at any time during the period of 12
months following the Completion Date, dispose of,
or agree or contract to dispose of, either directly or
indirectly, conditionally or unconditionally, any of the
450,000,000 New Shares issued and allotted by the
Company to the Seller at Completion pursuant to the
Agreement or any interest therein or any voting right or
any other right attaching thereto.

Implications under the GEM Listing Rules

Given that the applicable percentage ratios (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) in respect of the
Acquisition are more than 5% but less than 25%, the
Acquisition constitute a discloseable transaction for the
Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules
and are subject to the notification and announcement
requirements under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Completion took place on 24 March 2021. The
Consideration has been settled by the allotment and
issue of 900,000,000 New Shares to the Seller.

Further details of the Acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 29 January 2021 and
24 March 2021 and the next day disclosure return of the
Company dated 24 March 2021.

LETTER OF INTENT FOR
SUBSCRIPTION OF L'OFFICIEL INC.

On 17 April 2021, the Company and L’Officiel Inc SAS
(“L’Officiel”) (the Company together with L’Officiel being
the “Parties”, and individually, a “Party”) entered into
a binding letter of intent (the “Subscription LOI"), in
relation to the subscription of new shares of L’Officiel (the
“L’Officiel Subscription”), which is subject to approval
by the shareholders of L’Officiel at a general meeting
of the shareholders of L’Officiel to be convened on or
before 15 May 2021.

Pursuant to the Subscription LOI, the Company
conditionally agrees to subscribe for, and L’Officiel
conditionally agrees to allot and issue such number of
ordinary shares equivalent to ten percent (10%) of the
equity of L’Officiel, credited as fully paid up, out of the
unissued authorised capital stock of L’Officiel (together,
the “Target Shares”). In consideration of the agreement
for L’Officiel to issue the Target Shares to the Company,
the Company undertakes to settle the subscription
monies for the Target Shares by the allotment and
issue of 500,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.10 each,
credited as fully paid up, out of the unissued authorised
capital stock of the Company (the “Consideration
Shares”) to L’Officiel.

The Parties agree that the Parties shall negotiate and
finalise the details of the L’Officiel Subscription and
incorporate the terms and conditions of the Subscription
LOI into the definitive agreement (the “Definitive
Agreement”) and enter into such definitive agreement
prior to 15 May 2021, or such other date as may be
mutually agreed in writing by the Parties.

The Definitive Agreement will contemplate a separate
license agreement granting to the Company certain
mutually agreed rights to the content of L’Officiel and its
subsidiaries. These rights will enhance the Company’s
film, television, documentary and short video production
capabilities, by allowing for increased engagement
with L’Officiel’s and its subsidiaries’ extensive archive
database of several hundred thousand media items.

Further details of the Subscription LOI are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 April 2021.
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ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS
UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 17 April 2021, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”)
with GEM Global Yield, LLC SCS (the “Subscriber”),
pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue, the convertible bonds in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$25,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”), on the terms and subject to
conditions set out therein (the “CB Subscription”).

Upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per conversion share (the
“Conversion Share”) (subject to adjustments), a total
of 250,000,000 Conversion Shares with an aggregate
nominal value of HK$25,000,000 will be issued,
representing approximately 3.00% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this report
and approximately 2.92% of the issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the issue of the Conversion
Shares. The Conversion Shares allotted and issued upon
conversion will be fully paid and will rank pari passu in
all respects with the shares in issue on the conversion
date. The Conversion Shares will be allotted and issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Directors
by way of an ordinary resolution of the shareholders
of the Company passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 30 July 2020 (the “General
Mandate”).

The conversion price of HK$0.10 per Conversion Share
represents:

(i) a premium of approximately 66.67% to the closing
price of HK$0.06 per Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 16 April 2021 (being the last
trading date immediately before the date of the
Subscription Agreement); and

(i) a premium of approximately 68.35% to the average
closing price of approximately HK$0.0594 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five
consecutive trading days immediately preceding
16 April 2021.
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B 492.92% o FA #2 A% B BT 28 2 31T 2 IR R 10 75
EHERH WEFEFHERNEIR A 2817
BHDZEBRFHA - BB O ERIFEARD B RER
TECTEFLA=FTHBOZARFRERAFTKR
CLHBEBEBRBRERRTESZ —MEE([—K&
REE]) TUARCE R BT o

BRI AR D0.10E T Z AR B :

i) BOHOR-ZE-—FWA+ B (ANBRERE
BB &RE —ERX5H8)REXFTET
R A& A%0.0678 T U T (B )& B 4966.67% &

iy BONRBEE-Z= %A +7x8 ApE@EE
5B 2 5 BB 2 BT BT 3R B9 49 5 1%0.059478 7T
Z U T (B R (B 4968.35% °©
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The gross proceeds and net proceeds from the issue
of the Convertible Bonds will be HK$25,000,000 and
approximately HK$25,000,000 respectively. The net
conversion price is approximately HK$0.1, assuming
that 250,000,000 Conversion Shares are issued at the
conversion price of HK$0.1. The reason for the issue
of the Convertible Bonds is to raise funds to obtain the
proceeds.

The Group intends to use all the net proceeds as follows:

(i) approximately HK$5 million for repayment of other
accrued expenses of the Group;

(i)  approximately HK$5 million for payment of rental &
office expenses of the Group;

(i) approximately HK$5 million for payment of salary of
the staff of the Group;

(iv)  approximately HK$1 million for payment of general
office expenses of the Group;

(v)  approximately HK$5 million for settlement of the
PRC tax; and

(vi)  the balance for settlement of the professional fees.

As at the date of this report, the Group has utilized all the
net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds in
the manner set out above.

The CB Subscription and the issue of the Conversion
Shares under the General Mandate are not subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company. No
application will be made for the listing of the Convertible
Bonds on the Stock Exchange or any other stock
exchange. An application will be made by the Company
to the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for
the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Conversion
Shares.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

BT BMBRESFNAISERBEABERBHRIE TR
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A

(i) #B00EBTHARINAEEZEEERA
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(iy  #B00EABTHARINAEBZETH ¢

(iv) #100BAETHARINAEE 2 —RKFAH
¥

(v)  AB500BETTANGENFEFE: &

vi) HEARENBEXER-
=
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Dilutive impact of the conversion of the
Convertible Bonds

Assuming that there is no change in share capital of the
Company since the date of this report and the Conversion
Rights are exercised in full at the conversion price of
HK$0.10, the number of issued shares of the Company
will be increased by 250,000,000, representing 3.00% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this report (i.e. 8,323,868,369 Shares) and approximately
2.92% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Conversion
Shares. Such allotment and issue of the Conversion
Shares will result in the respective shareholdings of the
shareholders being diluted by approximately 2.92%.

Assuming that there is no other change in the
shareholding of the substantial shareholders of the
Company since the date of this report, the shareholding
of the substantial shareholders of the Company as at
the date of this report immediately before and after the
exercise of the Conversion Rights is set out below for
illustration purposes:

Shareholding immediately
before the exercise of
the Conversion Rights

RenRERTRAINRE

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERWR DT

BRURREZFHHEESE

BREARBRA B ARE AR ET R EE .
B AR IR ) S @R (B0A10 TR HITE - BIA
N A B TR (M 2B 1§ 1 N250,000,0008% * 15 A%
NARAIRE B S TR A (BN8,323,868,369
% A% 15 ) B93.00% F2 78 1 &) 4% B 25 K 2% 17 #2 A% A% 19
A% B BITIRAE 492.92% o R 3% [ 21T R IR AR
HBBHRRS B W REEFX2.92% ©

BRANBEERRANBED ARS A HELE
HEmBe) RERERF RAREEH AR
ERREEBBREREITEN R RERBEETE
‘ORI

Shareholding immediately
after the exercise of
the Conversion Rights
RERREETRENRE

Approximate Approximate

Number of  percentage of Number of  percentage of

Name of Shareholder Shares held shareholding Shares held shareholding
1143 1148

R EZ BERRYE BAERLE RERRBEE BHESL
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note) RBMEAE (FTEE) 1,584,147,296 19.08%  1,584,147,296 18.48%
Ms. Law Po Yee (Note) BESTL (H:F) 1,584,147,296 19.08%  1,584,147,296 18.48%

Note: Mr. Sin and Ms. Law beneficially owned 1,529,983,985
Shares and 54,163,311 Shares respectively. Mr. Sin and
Ms. Law are spouses and thus Mr. Sin and Ms. Law were
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which their
spouse was interested by virtue of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

ek EEERBLZTH R E =¥ E1,529,983,9850%
B 1 %54,163,311 7D - kR ERB L T AR
B ALRBREIESRAERG AEERBL LT
WRARBSRBHEAERNAE KRG T #EE#

=X o

fm
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Diluted loss per share for the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2021 was the same as basic loss per share as
the impact of the exercise of the Convertible Bonds is
anti-dilutive.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had total net assets of
approximately HK$586.76 million. Based on the financial
and liquidity positions of the Group and to the best
knowledge and belief of the Company, the Company
expects that it will be able to meet its redemption
obligations under the Convertible Bonds.

An analysis of the Company’s share price at which it
would be equally financially advantageous for the holders
of the Convertible Bonds to convert or redeem the
Convertible Bonds based on their implied internal rate of
return (and therefore the holder of the Convertible Bonds
would be indifferent as to whether the Convertible Bonds
are converted or redeemed) at a range of dates in the
future is set out below:

HRTEATRBRESSELREIZE WARA
BEARBE T - —FXA=t+HILRERAE

HERNERETFERESRENBEER -

RIB-Z—FRXA=1TH AEEFEELBD
586.76B B AL -HWAEE W B LR RBE 2K
S AR AR RIRA LR AR R TAHIA A
NETABRBESFR T 2EBREE-

REBRETHMZARBESNES A HBE R
F(FAKBARRESFEAMNS  BRIED
MBEESTEEZR) ATRRESZFAAER
SWMEAARRESKESRSZANZKED R
RRRREDFTEINMT :

Share price
Iz &

(HK$)

(%)

30 June 2021 ==
29 June 2024 (i.e. the maturity date of —Z
the Convertible Bonds) (

——4#xA=tH 5 1701
0.1 per Share

B %0.1
0.1 per Share

ZHWERAZTAR
Bl RESFH A )

Further details of the CB Subscription are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 18 April 2021 and
11 May 2021.
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
19 July 2021, the Board proposes to implement the
capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”)
which comprises the following:

(1)

2

Share Consolidation

The proposed share consolidation (the “Share
Consolidation”) is on the basis that every ten (10)
issued and unissued existing shares of par value
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
(the “Existing Shares”) will be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of par value of HK$1.00
each (the “Consolidated Shares”). Assuming
there is no other change in the issued share capital
of the Company before the date on which the
Capital Reorganisation shall become effective (the
“Effective Date”), the total number of Consolidated
Shares in the issued share capital of the Company
immediately following the Share Consolidation
will be 832,386,836 Consolidated Shares after
cancelling any fraction in the issued share capital
of the Company which may arise from the Share
Consolidation.

Capital Reduction

Assuming there is no other change in the
issued share capital of the Company before
the Effective Date, immediately upon the Share
Consolidation becoming effective, the share capital
of the Company will be reduced (the “Capital
Reduction”) whereby:

(i) any fractional Consolidated Share in the
issued share capital of the Company arising
from the Share Consolidation shall be
cancelled;

(i) the issued share capital of the Company of
HK$832,386,836 divided into 832,386,836
Consolidated Shares shall be reduced to
HK$8,323,868.36 divided into 832,386,836
new shares of the Company (the “New
Shares”) by cancelling the paid-up capital
of the Company to the extent of HK$0.99
on each of the issued Consolidated Shares
such that the par value of each issued
Consolidated Share will be reduced from
HK$1.00 to HK$0.01;

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERWR DT

REHRSE

B ARBIBHAE-Z=_—FELtA+THhBZRE
FIRE EXEERBTRAEA (REEA]) -
EREREATEE:

(1) BRHEH

EZzkHhea([BRBEH HZEERLXR
ARARE AR EREEIOB T ZE
BORARBETRERD ((BEKRKB])HEE
HAE—1)KREKEEI.00B T ZA HRND
(TEHE®]) BRERBKRAZAERA S
(TEMEH) A ARGF B BEITIRAL &2
B RaEEARAIEBETRAT BAKDE G
MAJREEE 2 EMHRE  BBERHE HFE
ARBEBITRAF ZEMBRHBEER S
832,386,836% & HEA% 15

(2) BRFH#E

RBN LN BRI A R E B 17 IR AN I &
B EREROAFERE BHARIZRK
AHETTHUR ([RRAHIR]) - &t

() ARREBEBETRATERMDEHFME
EZEMEREHRDG TEH:

(i) BBEHEARAEREBTAHRERG
2B RRAR0.998B L BEARRERE
BITA GG ZEEH1.0078 7T R
20018 L RMEADFEZETRA
832,386,836/5 7t (1 £832,386,836
f% & 6F B 15 ) Bl %k =8,323,868.36%8
7T (5 £832,386,836/% 248 A &) £ A 15
([#REH]) )
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(i)

The SGM

il

the credit arising from the Capital
Reduction in the amount of approximately
HK$824,062,967.64 will be credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company
up to the Effective Date within the meaning
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”) for use by the Directors in
any manner permitted by the Companies Act
and the bye-laws of the Company; and

the authorised share capital of the
Company of HK$2,000,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares shall
be reduced to HK$20,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 New Shares by reducing the
par value of all unissued Consolidated Shares
from HK$1.00 each to HKO0.01 each.

is expected to be convened and held on

14 September 2021 for the Shareholders to consider
and, if thought fit, approve the necessary resolution(s) in
respect of the Capital Reorganisation.

Further details of the Capital Reorganisation are set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 11 May 2021

(i) REXBHR  BREAEBREEZERLY
824,062,967.64/8 JL & 5T A K R 7] 8%
AEBE(EERBRE-—NN\—F2Q
VA ([ABE]) ) UHEZFEQAR
ERARBZARMBAAFZEMNA
NFEH &

vy BBEBMERBETAHRBRND ZEER
& R%1.007% T BB 2= & R%0.018 T - K
AT ZEE R AR2,000,000,000/8 7T (5
/£2,000,000,0008% & BFRE 15 ) BB EIRZE
20,000,0007% 7T (% £2,000,000,000
REFTREAD ) ©

ARABERABR T _—FNLATOBEARRE
ﬁﬂxi%}”ﬂﬁ(‘\ AR EZ B R BB EE B
RERZVERER-

ﬁF%HxZIKEZEZi FHBHERARRAHAS
—T—FHAT+T— E&_v_*EtH+HEIZ

/A%"

119.9% (31 December 2020: approximately 101.2%).
As at 30 June 2021, the Group's total positive cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$6.92
million (31 December 2020: cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$10.76 million).

National

Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

and 19 July 2021.
Liquidity and Financial Resources REE2REUBER
At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
R=-F=—% RZTZZTF
~A=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RESEE) (REeEZ)
Current assets mENEE 207,586 190,252
Current liabilities mEaE 173,190 188,042
Current ratio MBI X 119.9% 101.2%
Current ratio as at 30 June 2021 was approximately FRA=ZTHRNRBLELELNR/114.8%

R=ET=—

<_2_2¢+_Hf+ H:49101.2%) - A=

—FEXNA=ZtTH AEEHEEHEBRER
A,Eéféléaﬁ'mgﬁ{%,%m( = f¢+—

A=T—H REKRSFEBEEHN10.768 &5
JT) °
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Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of an
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2021
(2020: Nil).

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on
17 October 2002. The capital of the Company comprises
only ordinary shares. As at 30 June 2021, 8,323,868,369
ordinary shares were issued and fully paid.

RZE=-—-%7A=+H

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERWR DT

KE

BEETEBRNBE_Z_—FA=+tHIER
BANTHEHERE(ZE_FF &) -

BERBRERILE

AABIBRONR _EE _F+A+EHAEGEMLET ©
KA AERSERKR - RS -_—F A=+
B - #£7/58,323,868,369/% & 2 17 M & Ik X B
fi% o

At 31 December 2020
R-F-¥E+-A=+-H

At 30 June 2021

Amount Relative % Amount Relative %
&8 HE % 28 HE %

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET TET
Loans from shareholders RERRMER 141,122 7.8% 74,248 4.2%
Borrowings BE 119,499 6.6% 141,183 7.9%
Promissory notes AALER 47,000 2.6% 880,116 49.2%
Convertible bonds AR E S 891,016 48.9% 32,900 2%
Finance lease obligation BBHERE 32,460 1.8% 31,563 1.8%
Total borrowings fEEES 1,231,097 67.7% 1,160,010 64.9%
Equity E & 586,756 32.3% 628,362 35.1%
Total capital employed FrERMEREE 1,817,853 100% 1,788,372 100%

The Group’s gearing ratio (note) was approximately RZE-_—FXA=Z+8B AEENEAGEHE (K

67.7% as at 30 June 2021 (31 December 2020:
approximately 64.9%). If the bonds, promissory notes,
convertible bonds and finance lease obligation as stated
above were to be excluded, the underlying gearing
ratio would be 14.4% (31 December 2020: 12.1%). The
increase in the gearing ratio in the current period was
due to increased loans from third parties and bonds
during the period.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated by total borrowings over total
capital employed.

) R6TI% (—E-_ZTFE+-A=1+—H0:4
A64.9% ) o H ik Ll EH AR EE AR
BEAERMEHEAE HEAEL R AE14.4% (=
E_ETF+-A=1+—H:121%) AHHEEE
LR EATHREBEFIEE=ZAERRES -

Miz: BELEAERAEEMERNERNERZ LA

BEREXCEBERRA —TZ—FHRHARSE
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Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong
Kong dollars. During the six months ended 30 June
2021, most of the transactions, assets and liabilities
of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. During the period under review, since
the Group had both Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
receipts and payments, the net Renminbi exposure was
not significant. The Board considers that the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk was not significant;
therefore, no hedging transaction was made during the
period under review.

Commitments

Details of the Group’s commitments are set out in note
18 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Future Plans for Substantial Investments or
Capital Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 December 2017, Foshan Guohao Theme
Park Management Company Limited (LT E 2 5 &
EIE AR 2A7F) (“Guohao Theme Park”’), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into
a subscription agreement with Guangdong Hongtu
Guangdian Investment Co., Ltd. ( ERABEERER
R~ 7]) (‘GD Hongtu”), pursuant to which GD Hongtu
will make a capital injection of RMB20 million into the
Guohao Theme Park, in respect of joint cooperation of
the Second Phase Project. The Second Phase Project
involves building a total of 6 indoor studios and 2
boutique hotels next to the first phase of the Studio and
the Hotel.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
plan for substantial investments or capital assets.

Contingent Liabilities

Other than the disclosure under “Capital Commitments”
in note 18 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any other material
contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2021.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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18 ¢
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RE ARREEMNBARGLUTEESRERA

QT(FI RECEEFRLBEEREAR
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Additional Information

EIpE=Es

EERFETHRAERRKR®D
ERORES BRI KR

RZBZ—FXA=+H EF ARAAEETHK
ABRARBREEMBBEE (EXZREZR
eGP ([ESRAE®RG) EXVED) 2 M-
HERD MEFEE 2 RIEE S RHIE RHIEXV
METRFEDMZRERAMGARBRBRZZ
BEbkAR (BRLAAEIREZEB S LHE
ORI EFRR R TER 2wt RAR) » IR
BESEHERYIE362(F 2 R EBE LKA
BRMAZERZ AR HRBEGEMET R R E
5.4BIRES.67IRZ R EAME AR KRB Z
BRERRWMT

1. RELGHEREE01ETZEAER
(TRE1) 258

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company
X AT) 2T
EENs 51 #EmME FiRBBE RBREZBHESL
(Note 1)
(BRFEET)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam Beneficial owner 1,529,983,985 18.38%
5 B AR S A ExEAA
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 54,163,311 0.65%
il B s (fsE2)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 39,254,139 0.47%
BRI &R 55 EmEAA
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 0.04%
EECEE EmEA A
Mr. Li Kit Chee Beneficial Owner 4,480,000 0.05%
TR RE EmEEA
Notes: B 5 -
il This is based on the total issued Shares as at 1, WHERZZE-_—FSA=THHNBE T

30 June 2021 (i.e. 8,323,868,369 Shares).

2 By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, being the
spouse of Ms. Law Po Yee, was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Ms. Law Po Yee
was interested.

% {7 42 £ (B18,323,868,3690% I 17) °

2. HEBEFRBAEGOInE ABEMEE(ESE
RETZEB)IHERRNEB R LT ERE
s 2R D R R fe s
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LipiE=es
2. Long positions in the underlying Shares

2. REARBZETE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company
EEAT DT
EEng 51 #EEME FiRBHEE BREZBHESL
(Note 1)
(Ht5E1)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam Beneficial Owner 717,951,361 8.63%

HBIPR ST EmEAA (Note 3) (F#5E3)
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 32,463,918 0.39%

i B i s (P 3E2)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 40,305,952 0.48%

R R 88 e A ExnEAA (Note 4) (HfizE4)

Notes: B -

1, This is based on the total issued Shares as at 1. W ERZEZ—FAA=Z+HHB BT
30 June 2021 (i.e. 8,323,868,369 Shares). f&% 17 48 £ (BN8,323,868,3690% Ji 7 ) °

2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the spouse 2. BEEHFRBEG TBEMREELE(RER
of Ms. Law Po Yee, was deemed to be interested in I Z2EB)BERANEER LT HEESR
all the underlying Shares in which Ms. Law Po Yee BWEHEERDFHEERER -
was interested.

3 These underlying Shares represent 717,951,361 3. ZERBROHERZ-ZZE_ZEFAA=ZTN
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the AETTABMEENARRESETE
convertible bonds issued to Mr. Sin Kwok Lam on %15 T EITH717,951,361 B8 A1 Rtk 0 %
29 June 2020 under which Mr. Sin may exercise REATRZ-ZZE-_=FXAZ+ThLhHE=ZZ
the conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June ZEEANAZTN\BERBETERRE 17F
2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share. BAERRKM.55E T

4. These underlying Shares represent 40,305,952 4, ZERBEBROMHERZZE_ZEFAA=ZTAN

Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
convertible bonds issued to Mr. Chow Kai Weng on
29 June 2020 under which Mr. Chow may exercise
the conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June
2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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FfhnE R
3. Long positions in the debentures of the 3. RELGEFZHFAE
Company
Denomination

Capacity/ Currency of or unit size of Amount of
Name of Director Nature of interest debentures the debentures debentures
ESnE S Eauy EHEE BHEENEMRE BHHEHE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam Beneficial owner HKD 500,000 394,873,249
5 B 5 A EmlE A T (Note 1) (Ff#5E1)

Interest of spouse (Note 2) HKD 500,000 6567165

Ao B a (I sE2) BT (Note 3) (Ff&E3)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial owner HKD 500,000 22,168,274
Bl5E P BB A e (Note 4) (Ht5E4)
Notes: B & -
1. These debentures are convertible bonds issued to 1, ZEBHFAR T _TEF AT BT

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam on 29 June 2020 under which
Mr. Sin may exercise the conversion right from
29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price
of HK$0.55 per Share.

2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the spouse
of Ms. Law Po Yee, was deemed to be interested
in all the debentures in which Ms. Law Po Yee was
interested.

3 These debentures are convertible bonds issued
to Ms. Law Po Yee on 29 June 2020 under which
Ms. Law may exercise the conversion right from
29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price
of HK$0.55 per Share.

4. These debentures are convertible bonds issued to
Mr. Chow Kai Weng on 29 June 2020 under which
Mr. Chow may exercise the conversion right from
29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price
of HK$0.55 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executive of the Company had, as at 30 June 2021, any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

FTRBMEEM A RRES R EEE
AR E-_=F#FNA-thBE-_ZT_H
FRAZ+TN\BHMETELRRE TEER
FRRARH0.55% T ©

2. REFZFRBBRGD EBEMELE(EE
T2 REB)BRRANEERLR I HEEES
MEREsT AR

3. ZEBFANR_ZTE_TEF A=+ NBET

TREREBRARIHABRRKRES Bt B+

AR E-_=Z=F~NA-ThBE=Z_-1

FRAZTN\BHETERRE TEER
BRRAR70.55% T

4. ZEBEAN S _EFENA-THABREST
TRARLEENTHRBKES KBt BxE
AR= T D= £ N H = e =
FERNAZ+TN\BHETERRE TEEE
FRRAH0.55% T ©

B EXFHEEN RZE-—FEXA=1+H &%
EARAEBITHAEMBERAR R H E(AIHE
BAE (E&REFRIPERGEXVED) Z EM &
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2021, the persons or corporations, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO or had otherwise been notified to the
Company were as follows:

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS

1. Substantial shareholders’ long position in
the Shares

FTERRKREMALTRRD KRAE
RN 2ER KX

RZBZ—FXA=1TH BREBEXRFARRIFK
HI B {5k 5] EXVER SE3361K R E 17 B < B "L il AT ad
B AARBEEMNEG TIHALIOEE (BRARQ
BEEXNTETHRABINNRARB ZBH RIERE
By EEEDIORA

TERRZER

1. ETERRERGZFE

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
Name of shareholder  Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company
EXAT ST
BEEE S My PRt % 8B BERZBHE L
(Note 1)
(B5EET)
Ms. Law Po Yee Beneficial Owner 54,163,311 0.65%
BERLT ExnBEAA
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 1,629,9883,985 18.38%
fe B (PsE2)
Notes: B &
1, This is based on the total issued Shares as at 1, WHERZE-Z—FNA=Z1THMHEET

30 June 2021 (i.e. 8,323,868,369 Shares).

2. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law Po Yee, being the
spouse of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Sin Kwok
Lam was interested.

%17 48 8 (BN8,323,868,369R% Mk {7 ) °

2. REFFLBEMRD ZER L+ OFBEMN
TEEZRB)RESRNEEMELEE#S
2RI R AR -
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2. Substantial shareholders’ long position in
the underlying Shares
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FERRPEARGZITFE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held of the Company

EXR AT 2T

BEREA S #EEME FisRHp8E RBREZBHESH

(Note 1)
(M45E1)

Ms. Law Po Yee Beneficial owner 32,463,918 0.39%

#ERZL EnEA A (Note 3) (Pt &E3)

Interest of spouse (Note 2) 717,951,361 8.63%
Ao (B #E 2= (P 3E2)

Notes: B 5 :

1, This is based on the total issued Shares as at 1, WHERZZEZ—FA=THHNBEET
30 June 2021 (i.e. 8,323,868,369 Shares). A%t 48 21 (BN8,323,868,369% A% 14 ) °

2. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law Po Yee, the spouse 2. BEEFSFRBAEGY B8R 2L OEBEMK
of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, was deemed to be interested EEZRB)ERARNEEMNEEREER
in all the underlying Shares in which Mr. Sin Kwok B2 AR D PR R
Lam was interested.

3. These underlying Shares represent 32,463,918 Sh ZERBERNERZ=ZZE_ZTFA=TAN
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the convertible AT FTREAX LI BRRESFETE
bonds issued to Ms. Law Po Yee on 29 June 2020 1% 38 F 217 132,463,918 AR 15 « H it - BB
under which Ms. Law may exercise the conversion Z+ARZEZ=F~"AZT+NLBEZ=ZZT
right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at an ZREEANAZTN\BERETERRE  17F
exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share. BARAERRKRH0.55F T -

Ay —= N 2
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS Hh AT 2w
1.  Other persons’ long position in the Shares 1. BEMALTHRRHBZEFE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Capacity/ Number of share capital
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares held of the Company
EX AT 2T
BEREHA S EaHE FimRBBE RBREZBHESL
(Note 1)
(HE=E1)

Mr. Tse Young Lai Bene]ioial owner 563,547,600 6.77%

it RS S A E=mEA A

Advance QOasis International Beneficial owner 480,000,000 5.77%

Holding Limited EREB A
IRBRBEZERERA A
Note: B 5

=

This is based on the total issued Shares as at
30 June 2021 (i.e. 8,323,868,369 Shares).

BHEREXECEEARA A

ks

WHER-E-_—F A=+ HHNBE BT
% {7 42 8k ( B18,323,868,3690% ik 1) °

—E-—FREARE
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2. Other persons’ long position in the
underlying Shares

2. RMALTRHEHERGZITE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Capacity/ Number of share capital

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares held of the Company)
EEASEBT

REREZ S HEnME FiFRGHE RBRAZBHOESL
(Note 1)

(M$5E1)

Mr. Tse Young Lai Beneficial owner 2,099,047 0.03%

IR L& EmEAA (Note 2) (Bft&E2)
Notes: M5
1, This is based on the total issued Shares as at 1. I ERZEZ—FA=+HHBE BT

30 June 2021 (i.e. 8,323,868,369 Shares).

2, To the best knowledge of the Directors, Mr. Tse
Young Lai is interested in the underlying Shares
representing 2,099,047 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the convertible bonds issued to Mr. Tse
Young Lai on 29 June 2020 under which Mr. Tse
may exercise the conversion right from 29 June
2023 to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price of
HK$0.55 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, the
Company has not been notified of any persons, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 29 September
2010, a share option scheme (“New Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted. The principal terms of New
Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 6 September 2010.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

% 15 42 8 (BN8,323,868,3690% f& 1) °

2. BEEMA HAMELEREEROPHES
e ZEHEROER-_Z=ZZF XA
ZTABETTHEMRELENATRRES
BEITHE %1 T 1TH92,099,0478K B 17+ #&
o #EARIR T _=FA=-1+tLBEZE
—E-RFEXNA-TN\BHPREITERRE
TEEAEERBKRHD0ESETT -

REXFHBEEEN R-E-_—FRXA=+HB" K
RAETHBEAMAL(ARRAEETHREIETR
ABBRIN RAR R I KAREB D+ EERERE
R HE R BI EXVERFEI364 R EFEZ LM
NRENARMA R FEENRRIARR

BIEstE

REARAR_Z-—ZFFAA_TAABTZR
REFIAE LBBARER  —HERES ([#F
RERR HERT B ) IR - 3 B AR AR 5T 81 2 = B IR
HRARAEHR T -—ZFNARNBZBEA-
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New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2017, the
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company had been refreshed to up to 449,848,122
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the AGM
date based on 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue (excluding
share options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme) (the “Refreshed Scheme Limit’); and the
Directors were authorised, at their absolute discretion,
to grant share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of
the New Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal
with the Shares pursuant to the exercise of share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme within
the Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and
execute such documents for or incidental to implement
the New Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit.

As at 30 June 2021, no share options to subscribe for
Shares were outstanding. The details of the share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme during the
six months ended 30 June 2021 are set out as follows:
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B IR 1Ea1 &

BER-_EBE—+tENA-TABRTZRERSE
A ([RFEBAEXE)) LBBAZRER BEMH
EREAE AR EMEMBRETSRHEE
et 2 ETEIRBEE T2 52 %449,848,122% %15 -
B IA4,498,481,2220% B TR0 B E % - BRI
REFASERACEITRM 210% (R EHERK
MEFTEI AR MARTTE 8 KRB ITEZ
BRI ((EHETEIRE])  EEEESSE
BB RIEFERETS 2R L ATRERS
ZHERE BEUABEFEREAR: RIREFE
RS c EREETER B8 BTk
BIERD HEUAENAERELER: REERE
FrardIREEE AT EREEEL BT
B RET BB

R —#xA=+A  BETRERG 2 HE
AT NBE—F-—FAA=FAILX
1ELF 1R 5 R 4 T 805 A PB ARAERE S A0

Number of share options

BREE
Outstanding
As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled as at
Category of Exercise price 1 January during during during during 30 June
participants per Share Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period 2021 the period the period the period the period 2021
®
® “§c-%
Z8--% ~A=tH
SHEEEH BRAEE  RHEH L it -B-H Bt BafE BakH Bhd AR
(HKS)
(#70)
Directors (Note) 762 28 March 2011 28 March 2011- 28 March 2012- 92,411 = = (92,411) - -
27 March 2012 27 March 2021
(M)

“3--fZA-t4A

Total
283

ZE-—fZRZtN\B ZB-—%#ZA-T\BE CZE-ZF=A-tNBZ

92,41 = = (92,411) = =

Note: The Directors include former directors of the Company.

M EEREARRNEES

BEREXCEBERRA —TZ—FHRHARSE
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(i) New Share Option Scheme’s purpose

(ii)

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme was
to attract and retain the best available personnel,
to provide additional incentive to selected person
and to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

Qualifying participants

The participants of the New Share Option
Scheme included any employee of the Company
or any subsidiary of the Company, a director,
a shareholder, a supplier, a customer or any
subsidiary of the Company; an agent, adviser,
consultant, strategist, contractor, sub-contractor,
expert or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any valuable
services to Company or any of its subsidiary; and a
holder of any securities issued.

(iii) Maximum number of shares

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

In accordance with the resolution passed at the
AGM on 29 June 2017, the scheme limit on the
grant of options under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company was refreshed to up to the
Refreshed Scheme Limit, i.e. 449,848,122 Shares,
being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of the AGM (i.e. 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue)
(excluding share options previously granted,
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under
the New Share Option Scheme) and representing
approximately 5.40% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this report (i.e. 8,323,868,369 Shares);
and the Directors were authorized, at their absolute
discretion, to grant share options to subscribe
for Shares within the Refreshed Scheme Limit in
accordance with the rules of the New Share Option
Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the Shares
pursuant to the exercise of share options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts
and execute such documents for or incidental to
implement the New Share Option Scheme within
the Refreshed Scheme Limit.

() FrEER#ESEIEE

B B S ERSI RIRBEREBEOAT
ARAEEATREBINER AREBAE

(i) BEHLHEE

MBRETEN2EERRBRARRHELM
MEBARMEIMER EF KRR HEX.
BFHARBEMMHBAR MARFNHE
EATH R QB AT 3 S b T TR S AE
MAEBEREMHNAE FBEE- BXER KK
B AR D AERE BRIER REM
ERTESFNFTAA

(i) BRERHEE

BER-_E—+tENA-+TABENRER
FRELBBZAZR BEFTBERES
B K AN B ] E b B R R AT B IR B AR
B2 ERBEEHEEFHAEREE A
449,848 122 ERRBEFALEHE
ZE1TR% 1D (BN4,498,481,222/% & 3 17 I 1)
Z210% (REFHERETE 2R L H R
T~ FE8H - R ITE 2 BB AR BEBR HN) KA
RARE BEE 17 ( (B18,323,868,369
AR ) £95.40%  RIREEE2EMNIFRE
FTEREE AR T RERG 2B
ECBEUNEFAEIRBAR RBEFE
R BN 2 BRI R AR
BITREBRG  SBENEFHAEIREAR
A FERE H e £ PR 5 & B A8 17 5 AR A
SFEER BREITE AR B B
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each qualifying
participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted any
options which, if exercised in full, would result in
such person’s maximum entitlement exceeding 1%
of the aggregate number of Shares for the time
being issued and issuable under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date unless such
grant is approved in advance by the Shareholders
in general meeting. No qualifying participant who
is a substantial Shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates shall be granted any options, which, if
exercised in full, would result in the shares issued
and issuable to such person under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date for such options,
unless such grant of options is approved in advance
by the Shareholders of the Company in general
meeting: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the number of Shares then in issue; and (b) having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on each relevant date on which
the grant of such options is made to such person
under the relevant scheme, in excess of HK$5
million.

Option period

The share options may be exercised in whole or
in part by the participant at any time during the
exercise period, i.e. not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant new share options
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, by
delivering to the Company a notice duly signed
in a form approved by the Board (together with
payment of the exercise price in full in respect of
each new share to be subscribed for) and delivery
of the new share option certificate for amendment
or cancellation.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No offer of a new share option which is capable
of or open for acceptance shall be made after the
expiry of the exercise period pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme.

Additional Information

Lipii=gs

(ivy BEEEHLEELTERER LR

HMERTRERSREZBRENBEZES
REBEH(EFER)L12EANMEEE
TE - SEHZALTAEEES FREBAE
AR AR 3T B AR AT 81 2 31T B dn K Al 31T X
MBB 1% AIZAERSRETERTE
P HEERRNBRAE EBREREER
Shotna BRRSEERT ERWAIBILIEH
TEEREAREEBZHBEALRFTE N
TER ANFERBERE (EBBRERT
ERARARRAEBRRAE LRAEMEER
Sh) RBFBRER E CREREER TZ
FATZBEREEE2ETERFIERELR
BFETRND2BERBERBEEZRRH
BHEAT12@AHE (BEER) : (/&
BEEREETROBECA1%  RO)RIEA
MBRESE BAREBRETZALZ
EHBHRBRA 8 ARERMIZ KN
WnErE #HEBEALBEEBT

(v) FBREFH

SERE T AT H (BNAR 45 57 B IR i 5t &1 4R
HARREFT B AR A Y B BR AR AT TR IB10F ) I -
BRBEBRAARBAXRDIREFTSHAENT
ANZARENENCERBK TRBOHER
MO N2 BITEBERE)  LEARH
BhRERESAMERTHEHE UITRE2EK
BB R AL -

(vi) 1TRBIZEFFBRIEZ REHIR

R R R 8 NIRRT E R R 1R
SRR R A HERAR TR RE-

BEREXCEBERRA —TZ—FHRHARSE

69



70

Additional Information

B hnE R

(vii) Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$1 was payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the share option offer. The share
option offer was offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the offer is
granted.

(viii) Basis of determining the exercise price

(ix)

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

The exercise price for the share under the New
Scheme was determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of making the offer
of grant of a new share option but in any case the
subscription price must be at least the higher of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business day immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

Remaining life of the New Share Option
Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme was in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on the date on
which the New Share Option Scheme becomes
unconditional. As at the date of this report, the New
Share Option Scheme has expired.

(vii) BLIEAIFBIREZ 1150

ERAREABREZOECRARA XN
1B - BREBEANRRHENR HEF14
RN T A -

(viii) EEITEEZEE

MBI THROTEERETENIEERY
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BEHBEHAAESXAERIMEARESR
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had a total of 62 (2020:
419) staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
remuneration paid or payable to the staff during the
six months ended 30 June 2021 was approximately
HK$8,934,000 (2020: HK$20,192,000).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performances, experiences and the prevailing industry
practices. In addition to basic salaries and mandatory
provident fund, staff benefits including medical coverage
scheme and share options are offered.

The Group’s remuneration policy was reviewed
periodically by the remuneration committee and the
Board’s remuneration is determined by reference to
market terms, company performance, and individual
qualifications and performance. The Group aimed to
recruit, retain and develop competent individuals who
were committed to the Group’s long-term success and
growth. Remunerations and other benefits of employees
were reviewed annually in response to both market
conditions and trends, and were based on qualifications,
experience, responsibilities and performance.

The current remuneration of directors and key
management is determined by the individuals
performance and market trends.

During the period under review, the Group has not
experienced any significant problems with its employees
or disruption to its operation due to labour disputes
nor has it experienced any difficulties in the recruitment
and retention of experienced staff. The Directors believe
that the Group has a good working relationship with its
employees.

The Group encourages and supports the employees in
personal and professional training and also encourages
a culture of experience-sharing. The Group organises
various forms of training covering management,
customers service, financial, etc to the PRC office
with support from the Hong Kong head office. Other
than the internal training programme, the Group has
also established a continuous education scheme (the
“Education Scheme”). According to the Education
Scheme, the employee who passed the probation will be
entitled to the subsidy for the specified course approved
by the management with the maximum amount of
HK$50,000.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

M

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Huiyin
Holdings Group Limited (Stock Code: 1178), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect
from 29 October 2020.

Dr. Lam Lee G. (i) resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Huarong Investment
Stock Corporation Limited (Stock Code:993) with
effect from 13 November 2020; (i) resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (Stock Code: 8148)
with effect from 1 March 2021; (iii) was appointed
as a non-executive Director of Hong Kong
Aerospace Technology Group Limited (Stock Code:
1725) with effect from 13 May 2021 and a co-
chairman of the company with effect from 4 June
2021; and (vi) will retire and will not offer for re-
election at the annual general meeting of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Limited (Stock Code: 455) to be
held on 26 August 2021, all being companies listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred resigned as a non-
executive director and the chairman of Chinese
Strategic Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8089), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect
from 19 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, since the date of the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June
2020 up to the date of this report, there are no changes
in the information required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the six months ended 30 June
2021.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective close associates had any interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim of maximizing the shareholders’
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability. In this respect, to the
best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied
with all of the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules then in force during the six months ended
30 June 2021.

REQUIRED STANDARD OF DEALINGS
FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the six months ended 30 June
2021.
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Additional Information

B hnE R

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
2002 with written terms of reference, which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review the Company’s annual
reports and financial statements, interim reports and
quarterly reports and discuss with the management over
issues relating to auditing, internal control and financial
reporting.

During the six months ended 30 June 2021 and as at
the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Li Kit Chee and
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred. This report and the Group’s
unaudited results for the six months ended 30 June
2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
has complied with applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(Provisional Liquidators Appointed)

(For Restructuring Purposes)

Chow Kai Weng

Chairman, Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 9 August 2021

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer
Mr. Chow Kai Weng
(was Associate Chairman until 22 July 2021 and
was appointed as the Chairman on 22 July 2021)

Chairman and Executive Director
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam
(resigned with effect from 22 July 20217)

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
Mr. Ho Leung Ting

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Lam Lee G.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Yick Him

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chow Kai Weng

HEAD OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

Room 1514-15,15/F,,

Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza,
No.1 Science Museum Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui, HK

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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Corporate Information

NEEH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

Nomination Committee
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chairman)
(appointed on 22 July 2021)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 22 July 2021)
Mr. Li Kit Chee
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda laws)
LCH Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong laws)

AUDITORS

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Hang Seng Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

GROUP’S WEBSITE

http://www.nationalarts.hk

STOCK CODE

8228

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
BIZREN IV KEBERAS

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continuad in Barmuda with limited liability)
(HHEnRERAIERENETRARES) “f

Stock code B 47 L 8% : 8228
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